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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”
AND THE “GEM”, RESPECTIVELY)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be
aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The
greater risk profile and other characteristics of the GEM mean that it is a
market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on the GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take
no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors of China Binary Sale Technology
Limited (the "Company” and the “Directors”, respectively] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of
their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or

deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would

make any statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Financial Summary

MBEE

Results (for the year ended
31 December)
— Revenue
— Gross profit
— Listing expenses
— Profit before income tax
expenses
— Profit and total
comprehensive
income for the year
Earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Basic

Financial Position
(as at 31 December]
— Non-current assets
— Current assets
— Current liabilities
— Non-current liabilities
— Total equity
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2016

RMB’000
AR® T

30,965
22,440

176,726

189,344

181,293
268,769
119,859

8,498
321,705

2015 2014 2013 2012
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTE
48,329 63,094 61,228 53,252
41,502 42,712 41,971 33,791
— — (8,310) (4,492)
25,304 27,400 21,065 17,877
18,272 20,611 14,886 13,412
3.96 4.32 4.03 8.73
24,880 4,643 1,875 2,117
176,480 153,720 121,431 129,104
60,964 52,021 41,008 60,243
6,873 4,366 2,403 6,402
133,523 101,976 79,895 64,576
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Chairman’s Statement

EREHE

On behalf of the board of the directors of China Binary Sale Technology
Limited (the "Company” and the “Board”, respectively), | am pleased to
present the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (the "Year”].

REVIEW

In 2016, the Group accomplished operating revenue of approximately
RMB30,965,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB17,364,000
or 35.9% as compared to RMB48,329,000 in 2015. In 2016, the Group's
operating cost was approximately RMB8,525,000, representing an increase
of RMB1,698,000 or approximately 24.9% as compared to RMB6,827,000 in
2015. Gross profit amounted to approximately RMB22,440,000, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB19,062,000 or 45.9% as compared to
RMB41,502,000 in 2015.

In 2016, the Group accomplished profit before income tax expense of
approximately RMB176,726,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB151,422,000 or 598.4% as compared to RMB25,304,000 in 2015.

In 2016, the Group achieved profit and total comprehensive income of
approximately RMB189,344,000, representing an increase of approximately
RMB171,072,000 or 936.3% as compared to approximately RMB18,272,000
in 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
FEHE (E)

OUTLOOK

In 2016, the Group will continue to actively identify and explore new online
game operators, and strive to capture business opportunities. On the other
hand, the Group will also control cost and explore new service which could

leverage on its existing business to enhance the profitability of the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board and management, | would like to express gratitude
to the Group’s staff for their hard work during the Year. | would also like to
extend my thanks to all shareholders, fellow Board members and business
partners who have supported the Group.

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Sun Jiangtao

29 March 2017

& &

20165 » A5 B 5 A B R 1R ¥ R N B 4R AT A8
EHEBEZH UBNEREBHEE 55—
e AKBEESEFSNKALMNBAEERE
EBURSAEEN AN N MREH R -

&
AANERREFELNEEERMEEMASR
TEAFENFH T - RATRHEAEE
BAXFHNEERR EETNEREBE
HRRRDRESH -

TTHRIRATEE
BIE

201753 A29A

HNBFHERMARDR —F-—AFFR

7



8

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED N

BUSINESS REVIEW

China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) is principally engaged in providing online
transaction services by facilitating transactions between online game
operators and online game users and providing mobile top-up service to
mobile subscribers. The Group offers online transaction platforms which
can enable online game users to pay their online game accounts through
mobile top-up credits by operating its self-developed Shenzhoufu System
and cooperating with online game operators in the People’s Republic of
China. The Group uses the mobile top-up credits received from online game
users to top up mobile subscription accounts. Such process can also be
realised by the use of Shen Zhou Fu Card issued by the Group on the
internet. Besides, the Group is also engaged in the distribution of online
game products, the operation of the Game Review Website, the provision of
information technology services and the provision of online advertising

services.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (the "Year”], the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB30,965,000, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB17,364,000 or 35.9% as compared to RMB48,329,000 of
last year. The principal change in revenue during the Year was as follows:

1. Online Transaction Services

During the Year, the transaction volume of online transaction services
declined. There were approximately 12.331 million transactions of
providing online transaction services to the online game operators
through the Shenzhoufu System, which decreased by approximately
11.840 million transactions or 49.0% as compared to 24.171 million
transactions in 2015. The transaction amount for the whole Year was
approximately RMB822,000,000, representing a decrease of
approximately RMB514,000,000 or 38.5% as compared to that of
RMB1,336,000,000 of last year. In 2016, the average discount granted
by game operators decreased to approximately 2.67% from 3.30% in
2015, representing a decrease of approximately 0.63%.

The revenue generated from online transaction services decreased
from approximately RMB39,143,000 in 2015 to approximately
RMB19,318,000 for the Year, representing a decrease of approximately
RMB19,825,000 or 50.6%. The decrease in the transaction volume of
online transaction services was mainly due to the decrease of the
transaction volume of several online game operators which had

relatively high amount of transactions.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN RS (&

Due to the decrease in transaction volume of online transaction
services, the transaction volume of mobile top-up services also
declined. During the Year, there were approximately 23.776 million
transactions of mobile top-up services provided by the Group, which
decreased by approximately 12.569 million transactions or 34.6% as
compared to 36.345 million transactions in 2015. The transaction
amount was approximately RMB1,799,000,000, representing a
decrease of approximately RMB960,000,000 or 34.8% as compared to
that of approximately RMB2,759,000,000 for the last year.

As the transaction volume of the business of online transaction
services decreased and the decrease in transaction volume of mobile
top-up services was relatively small, the Group was required to
directly purchase more mobile top-up cards from telecommunication
operators or their distributors to fulfill the top-up demand. In 2016,
the nominal value of the mobile cards externally purchased by the
Group was approximately RMB963,000,000, accounting for
approximately 53.3% of the nominal amount of mobile top-up services
for the whole Year, while for 2015, the nominal value of the mobile
cards externally purchased by the Group was approximately
RMB1,393,000,000, accounting for approximately 50.2% of the nominal

amount of mobile top-up services for that year.

2. Distribution of Online Game Products

In 2016, the transaction amount from distributing online game
products of the Group amounted to approximately RMB1,469,700,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB1,225,638,000 or
502.2% as compared to that of approximately RMB244,062,000 in
2015, which was mainly attributable to the Company’s developing new
game operators. The revenue from distribution of game products for
the Year amounted to approximately RMB11,242,000, representing an
increase of approximately RMB7,119,000 or 172.7% as compared to
approximately RMB4,123,000 in 2015.

3.  Provision of Information Technology Services
During the Year, the Group has generated revenue from provision of
information technology services of approximately RMB401,000 (2015:
RMB 5,060,000].

Cost of Revenue

In 2016, the cost of revenue of the Group increased to approximately
RMB8,525,000 from RMB,827,000 in 2015 by approximately RMB1,698,000
or 24.9%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEE R (&)

Gross Profit

During the Year, the gross profit of the Group was approximately
RMB22,440,000, representing a decrease of approximately RMB19,062,000
or 45.9% as compared to approximately RMB41,502,000 in 2015, and the
gross profit margin in 2016 decreased to approximately 72.5% from 85.9%

in 2015 due to the increase of cost of the revenue.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased from
approximately RMB3,115,000 in 2015 to approximately RMB4,530,000 in
2016, representing an increase of approximately RMB1,415,000 or 45.4%.

Administrative Expenses

In 2016, the administrative expenses of the Group were approximately
RMB22,932,000, representing an increase of approximately RMB7,812,000
or 51.7% as compared to approximately RMB15,120,000 in 2015.

Income Tax Expenses

During the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group were approximately
RMB22,099,000 (2015: RMB7,032,000) with the effective tax rate of 12.5% (2015:
27.8%).

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

During the Year, the profit and total comprehensive income of the Group
was approximately RMB189,344,000, representing an increase of
approximately RMB171,072,000 or 936.3% as compared to RMB18,272,000
in 2015.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2016, bank and cash balances of the Group were
approximately RMB164,808,000 (31 December 2015: RMB45,499,000), which
were mainly denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”), United States Dollars ("USD")
and Hong Kong Dollars ("HKD").

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any loans or shareholders’
loans (31 December 2015: nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEEN RS (&

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately RMB181,293,000 (31 December 2015: RMB24,880,000). The
significant increase in non-current assets was due to the increase in long-
term investment. The long-term investment of the Group increased from
approximately RMB20,910,000 in 2015 to approximately RMB174,186,000,
representing an increase of approximately RMB153,276,000. The total
current assets were approximately RMB268,769,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB176,480,000). The current assets mainly included the increased bank
balance and cash. The total amount of current liabilities was approximately
RMB119,859,000 (31 December 2015: RMB60,964,000). The current liabilities
increased by approximately RMB58,895,000, which was mainly the unsettled
payables to game operators. As at 31 December 2016, amounts due from
related companies by the Group were approximately RMB484,000 (31
December 2015: RMB2,942,000). As at 31 December 2016, the Group's
current ratio was 2.24 (31 December 2015: 2.89). The Group's gearing ratio
was nil as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: nil).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The principal business operated by the Group was denominated in RMB,
while part of assets and liabilities may be denominated in USD or HKD. Any
material fluctuation of exchange rate from the USD and HKD against RMB
will impact on the financial results of the Group. The Group will continue to
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely. During the Year, the Group
had a foreign exchange gain of approximately RMB728,000 (2015:
RMBA48,000] resulted from the change of the exchange rate.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a conservative approach towards its treasury policies. The
Group strives to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
evaluation of the financial conditions of its customers. To manage liquidity
risk, the board of directors of the Company closely monitors the Group’'s
liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and commitments can meet its funding requirements.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

BEEE R (&)

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 82 employees (31 December 2015
95). For the Year, the staff costs of the Group, including directors’
remuneration amounted to approximately RMB13,103,000 (2015:
RMB8,589,000.

The Group believes that employees are one of its most important assets. In
order to offer a competitive remuneration to employees, the Group adjusted
their remuneration to closely related to their performance, education
background and experience, as well as the condition of the labour market in
2016. As a result, staff costs increased significantly during the Year by
52.6%. The Group also positively provides training opportunities for

employees to strengthen their working skills.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have any significant contingent

liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against the Group (2015: nil).

Significant Investment and Capital Commitment

Available-for-sale financial assets of the Group increased by
RMB153,276,000 from RMB20,910,000 in 2015 to RMB174,186,000, of which
approximately RMB109,290,000 was the value of acquired shares of Credit
China, which is exchanged from the disposal of shares of Leyu held by
Prajna, and increased by RMB34,717,000 as a result of the change in fair
value at the end of the year. The value of the shares of Leyu disposed
amounted to RMB9,841,000. In 2016, the Group invested in a number of
internet and software companies, with a total cost of RMB19,411,000.

Use of Proceeds

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had not utilised any funds raised from
listing in early December 2013. Net proceeds from the placing of the
Company’s shares were currently deposited in the bank account of
Shenzhoufu Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company as short-

term deposits.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Comparison between Business Plan and Actual

Business Progress

The Company was successfully listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 4 December 2013. The net
proceeds from placing were approximately HK$48.301 million. As at 31
December 2016, the comparison between the business plan that was
disclosed in the prospectus dated 27 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”) and
the actual business development during the Year was as follows:

Business Objectives

XBER

EBTHREREBERNOLER

RAR0IBFNRALBREBHBATIEAR
NABIERKI ET BEMBREFBEY
/448301,00078 JT - 2016412 A31H » K&
B BHA203F1NA2IBNBERER(HA
BWERDBENESKFEEAFTEERER
ERAOLLEMT

Execution in 2016

2016 FWHITIER

Maintain and enhance its leading position as
an online transaction services provider in the
Chinese online game market;

RELZEEEATER® LBERTSERR
EX SRR R R FE ML

Expand its online transaction services to
overseas users;

BAREMBIBPRERENE LR SR

Become the leading integrated online game
information and transaction service provider
by successfully developing the Game Review
Website
comprehensive online game information

into a professional and
platform and promoting online games

through the Game Review Website.

BBRKNERERBIPLS —EAEXLEE
EHREEERERNTFERERERHMTR
HERLER RARENEEMELER
BAERZREGHER -

In 2016, with the rapid development of mobile games, part share of the market of
online games is occupied by it. The decreased transaction amount of online
transaction services provided by the Group, the transaction amount decreased
from approximately RMB1,336,000,000 in 2015 to RMB822,200,000, representing
a decrease of 38.5%. The Group is actively identifying new online game operators
for cooperation, and continuously explore new services which could leverage its
existing business and enhance the Group’s leading position in the market.

ROCFHEEFHRERNARER BHTRAERNBI TS A&
BELNRLXSGRBIZETR XZBRNFNNRARKE
1,336,000,000 7T T f& E| A R #822,200,000 7T * BF 18 £38.5% © 7~ & [& IF 15 1%
MERRLERELERRAE LTEHERANOINAREEL ZHIR
B NERRARNEEETISNREMA -

During the Year, the Group was continuously providing services to overseas
mobile subscribers and online game users via www.shenzhoufu.hk, the website
operated by Shen Zhou Xing, a subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong .

HE2AFE AEEEEEBREBRNLONE RGN ITARE LKL
www.shenzhoufu.hk &8 5N F# B B A48 258 P IR (AR 7% -

During the Year, the Group incurred operating costs of RMB2,208,000 in Youxiping
business. As of the end of 2016, all the funds injected in the Youxiping business
were internal capital of the Group, and no proceeds were utilized.

RAFE AEEMEBREFREER ABARK?2208,0007T - HE2016F
K AEBHEBRORAEEE2BALAEENBEEES  AERITAE
EES -

HNBFHERMARDR —F-—AFFR

13



14

Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sun Jiangtao, aged 39, is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company (the "Director”], and was appointed as an executive
Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member of each of the remuneration
committee and the nomination committee of the Company [the “Nomination
Committee” and the "Remuneration Committee”, respectively). Mr. Sun
joined the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”] in October 2004. He is
responsible for the overall management and business development of the
Group. Mr. Sun graduated from the Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics with a bachelor’'s degree in Engineering. In 2012, Mr. Sun was
acknowledged as “2012 Outstanding Young Entrepreneur in the Industry of
China’s Electronic Information™ by China Electronics Enterprises
Association. In 2014, Mr. Sun was recognized as 2014 China's Commercial
Influential People (FEIEFEFZENAY) by the Third Session of China
Finance Summit Organizing Committee (FFEIEI4EIE & 4HEK €] and he has
more than 15 years of experience in corporate management, financing,

operation, product design and marketing.

Mr. Sun also serves as a director of Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software
Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing
Tianjiyilian Technology Co., Ltd., and the chairman of Beijing Wanlefu
Technology Limited. All the above companies are the subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 36, is an executive Director. Mr. Tang was appointed as
an executive Director on 8 June 2012. He is also the compliance officer of
the Company. Mr. Tang is responsible for overseeing the Group's
management of sales and marketing department and maintenance of the
daily operation. Mr. Tang has accumulated over ten years of experience in
the IT industry and online game business and is familiar with the operation
flow of the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from the Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics.

Mr. Tang also serves as an executive director of Beijing Shenzhoufu
Network Technology Development Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wei Zhonghua, aged 39, is the chairman of the board of Directors and a
non-executive Director. He joined the Group in October 2004 and was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member
of the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”). Mr. Wei is
responsible for supervising administrative activities of the Group and giving
suggestions to the formation of strategies. Mr. Wei graduated from the
University of Science and Technology Beijing with a bachelor’'s degree in

Engineering. Mr. Wei has over 17 years of experience in the IT industry.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)
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Mr. Li Jianguang, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive Director on ¢
April 2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the

Group and providing suggestions for policy making.

Mr. Li graduated from the department of economics of the Beijing University
in 1987 and received a master's degree in Science from the Guelph
University in Canada in 1994. He accumulated rich experience in investment
from years of career experience. Mr. Li has served as a non-executive
director of HC International, Inc. (a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”), stock code:
2280) since August 2006.

Mr. Lan Xi, aged 30, was appointed as a non-executive Director on 9 April
2015, responsible for supervising the administrative activities of the Group
and providing suggestions for policy making. He has seven years of
experience in investment bank and investment.

Mr. Lan graduated from the Beijing University in July 2008 with a bachelor’s
dual degree in electrical information science and technology and
economics.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Haoran, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee on 9 April 2015. Mr. Yang has over 16 years of
experience in internet industry. He graduated from the Anhui University of
Science and Technology and received a bachelor's degree in Electrical
Engineering in 1991 and a master’s degree of computer from the University
of Texas at Dallas in 1998.

Mr. Hou Dong, aged 45, is an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. Hou has more
than 10 years of experience in management and capital investment. Mr. Hou
currently is a venture partner of Tuspark Venture Capital Management
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Hou obtained a master’s degree in Engineering and a master’'s degree

in Economics.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)
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Mr. He Qinghua, aged 40, is an independent non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. He worked for several
famous international accounting firms with over 15 years of experience in

accounting, internal control and risk management.

Mr. He graduated from the University of International Business and
Economics in the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC") with a bachelor’s
degree in International Corporate Management in July 2000. He is a
Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Ministry of Finance of the
PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Yao Lan, aged 36, was appointed as the financial controller (the “Financial
Controller”) and the acting deputy chief financial officer of the Group on 25
April 2016. She is responsible for the Group’s overall financial work.

Ms. Yao graduated from Macquarie University in Australia with Bachelor’s
degree in Commerce, and Master’s degree in Commerce. She worked for
several famous multinational organizations, accumulated over 12 years of
experience in accounting, financial management, internal control and risk

management.
Ms. Yao is a Certified Public Accountant accredited by CPA Australia.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 36, is the compliance officer of the Group. For details of
his qualifications and experience, please refer to "Directors and Senior
Management Profiles — Executive Directors”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, aged 58, was appointed as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 9 November 2013. Mr. Kwok has over 25 years’
in-house legal, corporate secretarial and management experience gained
at company secretary and other senior positions from reputable listed
companies in Hong Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent and Hang

Seng Mid-Cap 50 stock companies] and overseas.

Mr. Kwok matriculated from Queen’s College, holds a professional diploma
in company secretaryship and administration, a bachelor’s degree of arts
and a post-graduate diploma in laws and has passed the Common

Professional Examination in England and Wales.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)
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Mr. Kwok is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrator in England, the Institute of Financial Accountants in England,
The Institute of Public Accountants in Australia, The Hong Kong Institute of
"HKICS),
Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of the

Chartered Secretaries (the The Hong Kong Association of
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He possesses other
professional qualifications in arbitration, tax, financial planning and human
resource management. He was a chief examiner and the longest-serving
council member of the HKICS.

Mr. Kwok currently also serves as the company secretary and a joint
company secretary of a number of companies listed on the Main Board and
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, respectively. He was
an independent non-executive director of a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is an executive director and the head, corporate secretarial of
Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited and a director of Boardroom
Share Registrars (HK) Limited, the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar. He is not an employee of the Company and he can contact Ms. Yao
Lan, the Financial Controller, in relation of to any corporate secretarial
matters.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHRE

The directors of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the “Company” and
the “Directors”, respectively] have pleasure in presenting their annual
report with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”] for the year ended 31
December 2016 (the “Year”].

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company’s registered office and principal place of business are located
at P.0. Box 31119, Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and 3rd Floor, No. 1 Building
Taiyueyuan, Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company's
subsidiaries are principally engaged in providing online transaction services
by facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users, and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the
PRC.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION AND
PLACING

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”) to rationalize the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company's

ordinary shares of US$0.001 each [the "Shares”] on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”

and the "GEM", respectively), the Company became the holding company of
the Group. Details of the Reorganisation are as set out in “History and
Development” of the prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November
2013 (the "Prospectus”).

Following the placing of 120,000,000 Shares at a price of HK$0.60 per Share

(the “Placing”), the Company was initially listed on the GEM on 4 December
2013 (the "Listing Date”).
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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STRUCTURED CONTRACT

The Group is principally engaged in, through Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. ["Beijing TJYL") and its subsidiaries, provision of online transaction
services. Pursuant to applicable PRC laws and regulations, foreign
investors, unless fulfilling the qualification requirements, are prohibited
from holding equity interest in an entity which conducts value-added
telecommunications services. Accordingly, the Group cannot acquire equity
interest in Beijing TJYL, which conducts our principal business and holds
the assets and certain licenses, approvals and permits required for the

operation of our principal business.

As a result of the foregoing, Beijing TJYL (and its shareholders, as the case
may be) entered into certain contracts (the “Structured Contracts”) with Mr.
Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Chunming and Mr. Wei Zhonghua (who are the
registered shareholders of Beijing TJYL and collectively the “Registered
Owners”) and Shenzhoufu (Beijing] Software Technology Co., Ltd.
("Shenzhoufu Software”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company on 22

June 2011, (which were subsequently amended on 30 June 2012).

The Structured Contracts comprise an Exclusive Optional Share Purchase
Agreement, Shareholder Voting Right Entrustment Agreement, Share
Pledge Agreement, Exclusive Intellectual Property Purchase Agreement
and Exclusive Consulting and Services Agreement (as defined in the
Prospectus), with Shenzhoufu Software, pursuant to which Shenzhoufu
Software has full financial and operational control of Beijing TJYL. The
series of Structured Contracts as a whole allow the financial performance
and economic benefits of the business of Beijing TJYL to be included in the
financial information of the Company as if the Company is the parent
company of Beijing TJYL. Pursuant to the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL has an obligation to pay the consulting and technical supporting
services fees to Shenzhoufu Software and Shenzhoufu Software has legal
rights to retain such fees as its revenue, and the Company is able to acquire
the entire profit (including the retained earnings) of Beijing TJYL under the
terms of the Structured Contracts.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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In addition, the Registered Owners granted the individual appointed by
Shenzhoufu Software, to exercise their shareholders” rights, including
without limitation, to declare, receive or decline the dividends or
distribution. In the event that the Registered Owners receive any dividends
or distribution of assets declared by Beijing TJYL, the Registered Owners
are required to return the dividend or distribution of assets so received to
Shenzhoufu Software within three days. Therefore, Shenzhoufu Software
controls the management and board of directors of Beijing TJYL and is able
to acquire the entire profit generated from Beijing TJYL under the
Structured Contracts. Details of the Structured Contracts are set out in the
123 to 140 of the

section headed “Structured Contracts” on pages

Prospectus.

Apart from the above, save as the investment in Beijing Zhangzhong
Technology Limited, there are no new arrangements pursuant to or under
the Structured Contracts [the "Contractual Arrangements”) entered into,
renewed or reproduced between the Group and the PRC operational entity
during the Year. There was no material change in the Contractual
Arrangements and/or the circumstances during the Year. During the Year,
none of the Structured Contracts mentioned above has been unwound as
none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of structured contracts
under the Contractual Arrangements has been removed.

Set out below are certain key consolidated financial information of Beijing
TJYL and its subsidiaries as prepared in accordance with the PRC
accounting standards during the two financial years ended 31 December
2016, respectively:
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements Mitigation actions taken by the Company

FHeNREZRAR QRN ZEBITH

The PRC government may determine that the The Directors have been closely monitoring the latest development of

Contractual Arrangements are not in compliance with  the existing or future applicable PRC laws or regulations (such as Draft

any existing or future applicable PRC laws or Foreign Investment Law), and will take measures to ensure that the

regulations Company, including Shenzhoufu Software and Beijing TJYL, are under
the control of PRC investors so as to comply with relevant rules and
regulations in the PRC.
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Certain terms of the Contractual Arrangements may According to the amended and restated powers of attorney, the

not be enforceable under the PRC laws amended and restated share pledge agreements and the amended and

restated exclusive business cooperation agreements, the arbitration
tribunal may decide compensation for the equity interests or property
ownership of Chinese business entities or their shareholders, decide
enforceable remedy or demand a bankruptcy on Chinese business
entities or their shareholders for relevant business or enforceable
asset transfer. Any party is entitled to request the competent court to
execute the arbitration award when it comes into effect.

MEZHFNETHERRBAREBEPBEDERARHH RELEITRELANERZRAE KEITREANRELRBH
REETMBERNBREEAEBENR T FREATARFTE
MEERBIEBRNBRERADEMARAERE BB
BRAHENEESERTRFIBEA G EBHEETRIER
RWE - FEHERERR  FA—STHEERNAEEEEENER
FREAITHREEOR -
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

EHeNREZAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

FRRRRZEBITH

The Group depends upon the Structured Contracts to
conduct its operations in the PRC and receive
payments from Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries,
which may not be as effective in providing operational
control as direct ownership

REBKBEBESHURTRETEEERS
1 UK RS Bk Ko EL BT 8 & ) YRS 5K Tk B A
RELERFNRITARLCNEREBREREAN

The Structured Contracts may be subject to scrutiny
by the PRC tax authorities and a finding that the Group
owes additional taxes could substantially reduce the

Group's profitability

BEEGHAUREEXTERREL MHERE
RAEETHMBIINRT ARG ANERERE
] ) 22 7 B2
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The Contractual Arrangements shall continue to enable the Group to
receive the economic benefits derived by Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries through: (i} the Group’s potential right (if and when so
allowed under the applicable PRC laws) to acquire the equity interests
in Beijing TJYL; (ii] the business structure under which the revenue
generated by Beijing TJYL and its subsidiaries is substantially retained
by Shenzhoufu Software; and (i) Shenzhoufu Software’s right to control
the management and operation of, as well as, in substance, all of the
voting rights of Beijing TJYL. The Directors are also of the view that the
current dispute resolution measures under the Contractual
Arrangements are sufficient to preserve the rights of the Group under
the current PRC laws.
BRRBESBEBAT I NEREBERETR B LR REB
REMBARNGENR (1A SEKBIERREB IR E 2 E
RN (HEEERTBEERE (NN EEZEAREILR
REBH R EME AR ELEZ KEbn Was Z 82 204 ¢ Rlii) 4
NEHEHIERAERBHERE 2EUALBE LA REEN
BN -BEF2NRE AHRPFETHNIRE BRUD BT IAHE
REBRBRITPEOERET ZHAH -

Having considered (i) the tax compliance certificates issued by the
relevant tax authorities; [ii] that the Group has not encountered any
interference or encumbrances from any PRC tax authority or other
government authorities to the Contractual Arrangements; and [iii] that
neither Beijing TJYL nor Shenzhoufu Software was entitled to any tax
benefit and no favorable impact on the Group’s tax liabilities was
created when the Contractual Arrangements were first entered into in
2008, the Directors are of the view that the Contractual Arrangements
are not likely to be challenged by the PRC tax authority and other
government authorities.
REBEBERBZEL ZMAVEGMRER : (I AEERBEET AT
B 75 3 =X H fth B # B T A 40 % B4R I A ) T 3B S hn (AR EE
BE RNR-_FZENFERITLANLTHE  ERREB B
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Risk associated with the Contractual Arrangements

FHeNREZRAR

Mitigation actions taken by the Company

QRN ZEBITH

The Group relies on the licences held by Beijing TJYL
and its subsidiaries and the interruption of the Group’s
relationship with Beijing TJYL could adversely affect
the Group’s business

AEBRBIERREBEH R EKNE R AT AR
R-MPEAEEEILLRARBH BRI GY
AEENEBERTHNEZE

There may be potential conflicts of interest between

the Group and the shareholders of Beijing TJYL

AEBEIEFRREBHRR ZE A EFEEERN

HmER

For details of the risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements,
please refer to the section headed "Risk factors — Risks relating to the

Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.

To ensure sound and effective operation of the Group after the adoption
of the Contractual Arrangements, the relevant business units and
operation divisions of the Group have been reporting regularly, which
have been/will be no less frequent than on a monthly basis, to the
senior management of the Company on the compliance and
performance conditions under the Contractual Arrangements and other
related matters.
RERAEENEAGNRERUBREIMEE AKENE
MEBBUREEDXE /MEHHEXHAIREA R EAE
RABHREEEERECNRHBATZARLETER  UEEM
HEAEE-

The Company has adopted the following measures to manage the
conflict of interests arising from the competing business and to
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders:
RARCHEMUTHEEAEEELARFUEEBE ZNaEREMR
[ AL ) 2

(a)  the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed/will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the undertaking
given by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Swift Well Limited
and Data King Limited (the "Controlling Shareholders”] under the
deed of non-competition (the "Deed of Non-competition”] entered
into between the Company and the Controlling Shareholders on 9
November 2013 regarding certain non-competition undertakings
(the "Non-competition Undertakings”) given by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company (for itself and
as trustee for its subsidiaries): and

(@) BUFRTEFE BERFEMRPELE RKIFLE
Swift Well Limited & Data King Limited ([ 12 B J% 2R | ) 38 <SP AR 15 AR
AR BEEERRERR -_E-—=F+ - ANBASERBERAR
AR BEXRFREREMBARANERN RREARTZ
ETAHFAG(ABRFARDAILOTHFRZE(TTHE
ERE DG THERNERL: &

(b)  the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to provide all
information requested by the Company which is necessary for the
annual review by the independent non-executive Directors and
the enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition;

b) ERERCAHREMEARNEREUBYFRNTESE
TEEEHNRRTIEEREMEELENER

ERANLRHFZRARNFE  F2HAKRE
BIERREZ-REBEEa0FHENER] —
£ o
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements. There was no significant change in their activities during the

Year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as the
executive Directors. The executive Directors regularly review revenue and
operating results derived from provision of online transaction services,
provision of technology services and provision of online advertising services
and consider such as one single operating segment.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations are
located in the PRC.

Information about major clients

There was no single customer which contributed to 10% or more revenue to

the Group’s revenue for the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group
and the Company at 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated

financial statements on pages 71 to 136.

The board of Directors (the “Board”] has resolved not to recommend the
payment of a final dividend in respect of the Year (2015: nil).

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S
PLACING

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Placing, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other relevant fees and expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$48.301 million. For details of the use of proceeds, please
refer to the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” in this

annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the Year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALIZATION

The Group had no interest capitalization for the Year (2015: Nil).

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no bank borrowings (2015: Nill.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the Company’'s share capital during the Year

are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity and in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company's distributable reserve was
approximately RMB206,382,000 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised] of the Cayman lIslands (2015:

RMB52,314,000).

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) by reason of their
holdings of the Shares. If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holding, disposing of or dealing in, or exercising
of any rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their

professional advisers.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate mobile top-up transaction amount from the five
largest mobile top-up agents accounted for approximately 12.7% (2015:
10.4%) of the Group’s total mobile top-up amount, and mobile top-up
transaction amount from the largest mobile top-up agent of the Group
accounted for approximately 6.4% (2015: 3.9%) of the Group’s total mobile
top-up transaction amount.

For the Year, the aggregate transaction amount from the five largest online
game operators accounted for approximately 60.5% (2015: 43.2%) of the
Group's total amount of online transaction service, and transaction amount
from the largest online game operator of the Group accounted for
approximately 17.2% (2015: 11.8%)] of the Group’s total amount of online

transaction service.

For the Year, the aggregate purchasing amount from the five largest mobile
top-up service distributors accounted for approximately 77.8% (2015: 76.5%)
of the Group’s total mobile top-up purchasing amount, and the purchasing
amount from the largest mobile top-up service distributor of the Group
accounted for approximately 35.6% (2015: 30.5%) of the Group's total mobile
top-up purchasing amount.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM [the "GEM Listing Rules”), or
any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had a beneficial interest in
the Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the
Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities during
the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised any
rights in relation to convertible securities, options, warrants or similar
rights during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association
of the Company [the "Articles of Association”], or laws of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing Shareholders.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2016

TBEEFRHER

HEXAFE Zli’ilﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj(ﬁiiﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ

BEREXRSSHEARNEE2RAERESLHE
B912.7% (20154 : 10.4%) - HE}WE%K%%

REFNZERERITBHELHEE R
EXHELEM6.4% (20154 : 3.9%) °

BEAFTE AKRERBOLABLERBAR
MRZGEAENEEZHABELRIRBERZE
#60.5% (2015%F = 43.2%) " AMKR B &AM L
BEAFPNXZEBNEEZHR/ LR SR
RHEMKINT.2% (2015 : 11.8%)

HEAFE AEERERARGEERED H
FHNRESEARNVG2HFERTERES
EEH977.8% (20154F : 76.5%) » [E HI 2k B &% A &%
EXE HENRESENE2IEERE
RS 5 M35.6% (20154 : 30.5%) °

AARESE HEMNBERHRA (MBI ZEIRE
FH E R A ([8I 2R ETAE RN BT R E) skt
MRR (RESAFE A RRISN A LB 31T
BAR)BERATRNARATFREREREESEIM

= e

EmiEam o

ﬂi

\r

d
.

ol  HEREEAQR Z

3

e
RAEE  ARAGRMEBELDETMETES
BARRARSEMBARBEREN L EHE
B o
ARARRETAMMERTRAEEZRMER
TR IR A A] 4R %vﬁsﬁﬁ; % R Bk
MR METEA M ERES - S

R E AE R 2 R N S AR AR

BrBERE

ARmzABERM(HBERAA]D) K
RERE AL ERBECEREZGXR
EARBARNBRERRZULIIREZ2ZEEFTK

{/'\ °



Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (&)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)

for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants

who have contributed or may contribute to the success of the Group’'s

operations. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 9

November 2013, the principal terms of which are set out below:

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for the Share(s)

pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (the “Option”] to any of

the following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

(a)

(b)

(c]

any director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part
time] (the "Employee”], consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company
in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company
(the “Affiliate”); or

the trustee of any trust, the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects of which include any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,

partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or

contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Maximum Number of Shares

(a)

Subject to paragraphs [b) to (d] below, the maximum number of
Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in
aggregate, exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in
issue as at the Listing Date (the "Scheme Mandate Limit"] unless
approved by the Shareholders pursuant to paragraph [c) below.
Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme
Mandate Limit.
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(b)

(c]

(d)

Subject to paragraphs [c]) and (d] below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the Shareholders in general meeting from time to
time provided always that the Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed
must not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval
of such renewal by Shareholders in general meeting. Upon such
renewal, all Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company [including those
exercised, outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the
terms of the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company] prior to the approval of such renewal shall not be
counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as

renewed.

Subject to paragraph (d] below, the Board may seek separate
Shareholders” approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond
the Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
involving the issue or grant of Options or similar rights over Shares or
other securities by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. Notwithstanding anything
contrary to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, no Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being

exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the

Options granted to each Eligible Participant (except for the substantial

shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules] of the Company or the

independent non-executive Directors) [including both exercised and

outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue. Any grant of further Options above this limit shall be

subject to the following requirements:

(a)

(b)

approval of the Shareholders at general meeting, with such Eligible
Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having
been sent by the Company to its Shareholders with such information

from time to time as required by the GEM Listing Rules;
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(c]  the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
grantee shall be fixed before the Shareholders” approval mentioned in

paragraph (a) above; and

(d)  for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the
Shares in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted,
the date of Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options
shall be taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine,
which shall not exceed 10 years from the date the Option is deemed to have

been granted subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to the relevant Eligible
Participants and shall not be less than the highest of:

(a)  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities (the “Business Day");

(b)  an amount equivalent to the average of the closing prices of a Share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5
Business Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant
Option; and

(c]  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.

No Options were granted since the Listing Date. Therefore, no Options were
exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the Year and there were no
outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2016.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses by reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, their time commitment and the
performance of the Group. The Group also reimburses them for expenses
which are necessarily and reasonably incurred for the provision of services
to the Group or executing their functions in relation to the operations of the
Group. The Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and
compensation packages of the Directors and senior management by
reference to, among other things, market level of salaries paid by
comparable companies, the respective responsibilities of the Directors and

the performance of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “"Remuneration
Committee”] reviews the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors and senior management by reference to their responsibilities,
work load, the time devoted to the Group, and performance of the Group.
The Directors and senior management may also receive Options to be

granted under the Share Option Scheme.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated

financial statements, respectively.

DIRECTORS OF THE BOARD

The Directors as of 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this report are
named as follows:

Executive Directors

Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer)?™

Tang Bin

Non-executive Directors

Wei Zhonghua (Chairman)*
Li Jianguang
Lan Xi
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Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”)

Yang Haoran®™"

A/RIN

Hou Dong
He Qinghua”

A: Member of the Audit Committee
R: Member of the Remuneration Committee
N: Member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. Yang Haoran will retire from office by
rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM”).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
PROFILES

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 14 to 17 of this annual report. Directors’ other particulars are

contained elsewhere in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with
the Company on 1 May 2015, which will continue thereafter unless and until
it is terminated by the Company or the Director giving to the other not less
than 30 days’ prior notice in writing. Each of the executive Directors is
entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the Board.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of

compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive Directors and the INEDs have entered into letters of
appointment with the Company for a term of two years. The non-executive
Directors were not entitled to receive any director fees or other
remuneration. The annual emolument of an INED for the Year was
HK$60,000, and other two INEDs were HK$80,000, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors was
considered to have interests in a business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under Rule 11.04 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

Review of our business and performance

Information about a fair review of, and an indication of likely future
development in, the Group's business is set out in the “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis™ of this annual

report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

The following are among the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group:

. the Group’s business relies on the continued usage of the Shenzhoufu

System by online game users and mobile subscribers;

o the continued successful operation of the Group's business depends
on the Group’s ability to maintain cooperation with existing partners
in the online game industry in the PRC and to enter into cooperation

with other online game operators;
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o the Group’s business may face competition from the PRC
telecommunication companies if they seek to engage in the online

transaction service similar to the Group;

o The Game Review Website of the Group has a limited operating
history; and
. Given the change in business environment, Youxinping an online

advertising platform is making a minimal revenue. As such, the Group
has stopped making further investment in Youxinping. The Director

will continue monitoring the business of Youxinping.

Details of the risks are set out in the section headed "Risk Factors” of the
Prospectus and they are also applicable to the Group currently.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
any relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
Particulars of important events

The Board has not identified any important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the Year.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to nurturing its staff to care about and protect the
environment. It conducts its business in a manner that balances the

environment and economic needs.

The Group complies with all relevant environment regulations. It works with
its partners including customers and suppliers in a concerted effort to
operate in an environmentally responsible manner by making concerted

efforts to be energy-efficient and to practise "Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
Among others, the Group has taken the following initiatives:
. uses recycle print paper and toilet paper.

o adjusts the heat supply system to low settings during the winter

vacation period.

Details of the Group’s environmental policy and performance are contained
in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report on pages 55 to 64 of
this annual report.
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Stakeholders’ engagement

We obtain and understand the views of our stakeholders regularly. This
communication provides valuable feedback for our business and assists us
to understand stakeholders’ needs and assess the best way to leverage our
resources and expertise to contribute to future business and community

development.

Across the supply chain, we have taken steps throughout the Year to ensure
that we operate responsibly and in the interests of our customers,

workforce, suppliers and other stakeholders.

Employees perform management, administration and human resources,
operation and finance relation functions respectively. The Group determines
the remuneration of its employees by reference to the market salary of their
individual experience and performance. The Group will continue to improve
and upgrade their management and professional skills. None of the Group’s
employees is represented by any collective bargaining agreement or labour
union. The Group has not experienced any significant problem with its
employees or disruption to its operations due to labour dispute, nor has the
Group experienced any difficulties in the recruitment and retention of
experienced staff.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, subject to the applicable laws and
regulations, all Directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of
the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted by
or about the execution of their duties. Such permitted indemnity provision
has been in force throughout the Year. The Company has arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the

directors and officers of the Group.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into the Non-
competition Undertakings with the Controlling Shareholders on 9 November
2013 regarding certain non-competition undertakings given by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company (for itself and as trustee
for its subsidiaries). A summary of the principal terms of the Non-
Competition Undertakings is set out in the section headed "Relationship

with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders confirms that he/it had fully complied
with the Non-Competition Undertakings during the Year and up to the date
of this annual report.

The INEDs have reviewed the confirmation provided by each of the
Controlling Shareholders in respect of the Non-Competition Undertakings.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, there was no material contract between the Group
and the controlling shareholder of the Company or its subsidiaries during

the Year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions set out in Notes 30(a) and 30(c] to the
consolidated financial statements constitute continuing connected
transactions exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and

the transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business.
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Shenzhoufu Software, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
entered into certain Structured Contracts with Beijing TJYL and its equity
holders, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive Director and the chief
executive officer, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director and Mr. Wei Chunming. Details of the Structured
Contracts are set out in the “Structured Contracts” paragraph under the
section headed “Connected Transactions” on pages 262 to 265 of the
Prospectus and the section headed “Structured Contract” on pages 19 to 23
of this annual report. The transactions (consulting and technical supporting
services) under the Structured Contracts carried out during the Year were
approximately RMB25,400,000 and the amounts have been eliminated in the

consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, Beijing TJYL is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the Structured
Contracts are continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The INEDs have reviewed the Structured Contracts and confirmed that: (1)
the transactions carried out during the Year had been in accordance with
the relevant provisions of the Structured Contracts and had been operated
so that the revenue generated by Beijing TJYL had been substantially
retained by Shenzhoufu Software; (2) no dividends or other distributions had
been made by Beijing TJYL to the holders of its equity interests which were
not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the Group; and (3) all
contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced between the Group and
Beijing TJYL for the Year were in the ordinary and usual business of the
Group, on normal commercial terms, fair and reasonable, or advantageous
so far as the Group was concerned and in the interests of the Shareholders
as awhole.

BDO Limited ("BDQ"), Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong, the
Company's independent auditor (the “Independent Auditor”), was engaged
to report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and by reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. BDO has issued
a letter to the Board containing its findings and unqualified conclusions in
respect of the Group’s continuing connected transactions disclosed above in
accordance with Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong (the "SFO"]) which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO [(including interests and short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFOJ, or (b] pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register as referred to therein,
or (c] pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions in the Shares

R2016F 128318 AAREZEETRFTETH
AEBRARABREFMBE ZE(TEERA
BERFENEEFLFRBEGRN(ESRBE
BBl EXVER) BBk - ARG REH+ %
F RQERBEZIFRMEBRIEXNVHLBETRES
D EBIR TE B A S AN QA M A P R R 2= MO
EREREEFRAERINZERXEE
ERRABEENERZ AR HbIIRIEFES
RERE GBI E35216 B A IETIER & &
it sK()RIBEAIZE IR = AR B E5.46 =567 15
BEMEARARNA RN ER AT

B zHR

Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held the issued Shares "*?
EERAT
FHERT ERTRE
EEnA 5 REatE IR 17 B BHED Y
Mr. Wei Zhonghua Interest of a controlled corporation ™t 129,682,800 27.02%
B ERE T A E R s Y
Mr. Sun Jiangtao Interest of a controlled corporation ™'¢? 143,040,000 29.80%
BRLELE TG E r i Y
Mr. Tang Bin Beneficial owner
B 5 4 BEHEBEAA 588,000 0.12%
Notes: B 5
1. Details of the interest in the Company held by Swift Well Limited are set outin 1. Swift Well Limited R AN X B #5520 2 F 15 &R

the section headed "Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

2. Details of the interest in the Company held by Data King Limited are set out in
the section headed "Substantial Shareholders” and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2016.

THIEBRAREMALREG RBERG 2
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2. Data King Limited R AN A Al B @ 2 FF B &R
TXIEEREREAMA TR RAEBRHD 2
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3. Fifh 2 IR » b T AR AR A R2016F12 8
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none of the Directors had
any interests or short positions in the shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2016, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified to
any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) which/who had 5% or more interests in the Shares and the
underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the

B FCHRFTEE SN R2016F 128310 - L EAR
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R2016F12R31H  MARABIEEXRFEITH

ABFTASTESRE BREZFHFRBEKDSE
3BT E M0 MR () #E B 5%k A
IREZAFHIAT(RRARIESZHEETH
ANEBRIMNFBOT :

SFO were as follows:

Number of Appropriate
issued percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity/Nature of the interests Shares held issued Shares ")
L NN
eI 2BITRA
BRRES By x4y %12 8 AT S Y
SWIFT WELL LIMITED Beneficial owner Mo 129,682,800 27.02%
gﬁ—ég&ﬁA(W%ﬁ)
DATAKING LIMITED Beneficial owner Mt ? 143,040,000 29.80%
gﬁ—ég&ﬁA(WﬁZ)
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Beneficial owner Mt 81,122,700 16.90%
FUNDIIL.P. e A
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Interest of a controlled corporation k) 81,122,700 16.90%
FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. 72 ) K B A 4 2 (TR
|IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Interest of a controlled corporation k) 87,757,200 18.28%
GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. 72 ) K B A 4 2 TR
Ho Chising Interest of a controlled corporation Nl 87,757,200 18.28%
72 I B Y 2 Y
Zhou Quan Interest of a controlled corporation el 87,757,200 18.28%
Bz 72 K B Y 2 )
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Notes:

SWIFT WELL LIMITED is owned as to 95% by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the Chairman
and a non-executive Director, and 5% by Mr. Wei Chunming. Under the SFO,
Mr. Wei Zhonghua is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which SWIFT
WELL LIMITED is interested.

DATA KING LIMITED is wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun
Jiangtao is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which DATA KING
LIMITED is interested.

IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P. which owned 81,122,700 Shares is an
exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman Islands. Its general
partner is IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. while the
general partner of IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II ASSOCIATES L.P. is
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. which is a limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Moreover, IDG-ACCEL CHINA
GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is the general partner of IDG CHINA
INVESTORS Il L.P. which owned 6,634,500 Shares. Under the SFO, IDG-ACCEL
CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P. is interested,
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P.
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. are interested.

Ho Chising is a controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of IDG-
ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il
ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

Zhou Quan is the other controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND
GP I ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2016.

Save as disclosed above, no party had informed the Company that he/she/it

had interest or short positions in any issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2016.
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SWIFT WELL LIMITED % Bl 3 88 * 2 5 &£ (AR A A
ITERFATES)RBREALEEAFSLR
5% RIFBH R EKRG - BPELEEWR AR
SWIFTWELL LIMITED¥# B =R T BRD P #H B

DATAKING LIMITED R R /T /&3 % £ (A R Al ¥ 17
EERTHBR)2EHE BREFHFREERE
Bl FRIT R 5 A AR A R DATAKING LIMITED # A&
BHEOMERNDRES R -

IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND II L.P. AR £
HEFMNEREAREZ AR - #H581,122,700
g iR o H ?at A % A BIDG-ACCEL CHINA
GROWTH FUND 11 ASSOCIATES L.P. » M IDG-ACCEL
CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. ¥ ¥ &
A % A AIDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP II
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director or the chief executive of the Company or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will
or may result in the Company issuing Shares were entered into by the

Company during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence from
each INED, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. He Qinghua,
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this report,
the Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the
issued Shares were held by the public] as required under Rule 17.38A of the
GEM Listing Rule as at the date of this report.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHS (&)

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by the Company’s former compliance adviser, Quam Capital
Limited (the "Former Compliance Adviser”), except for the compliance
adviser agreement entered into between the Company and the Former
Compliance Adviser on the Listing Date [the "Former Compliance Adviser
Agreement"], neither the Former Compliance Adviser nor its directors,
employees or close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interests in relation to the Company or any member of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) during the period from 1
January 2016 to 19 January 2016, which is required to be notified to the
Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company and the Former Compliance Adviser mutually agreed to
terminate the Former Compliance Adviser Agreement with effect from 19
January 2016 due to the then changes in the personnel of the Former

Compliance Adviser.

Subsequent to the termination of the Former Compliance Adviser
Agreement with the Former Compliance Adviser, Lego Corporate Finance
Limited ("Lego”) has been appointed as the new compliance adviser to the
Company as required pursuant to Rules 6A.19 and 6A.27 of the GEM Listing
Rules, with effect from 19 January 2016. For further details, please refer to
the Company’'s announcement dated 19 January 2016. The Company

continued to engage Lego as its compliance adviser thereafter.

As notified by Lego, save for the compliance adviser agreement entered into
between the Company and Lego dated 19 January 2016, neither Lego nor its
directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing
Rules) had any interests in relation to the Company or any member of the
Group (including interest in the securities of the Company or any member of
the Group, and options or rights to subscribe for such securities] during the
period from 19 January 2016 to 31 December 2016, which is required to be
notified to the Company pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

EEEHE (E)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Particulars of the Company’s principal corporate governance practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 43 to 54 of this annual

report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”] consists of
three members, namely Mr. He Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both are INEDs
and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a non-executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the
chairman of the Audit Committee. It has reviewed with management the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

There has been no change of the Independent Auditor in the past three
years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been audited by BDO which will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint BDO as
the Independent Auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its
remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Sun Jiangtao

Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

29 March 2017
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

It is the belief of the board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” and
the “Board”, respectively) that good corporate governance plays a vital part
in maintaining the success of the Company. The Board and the senior
management are dedicated to establishing and maintaining a high level of
corporate governance. Various measures have been adopted to enhance the
management efficiency of the Company and thus to protect the interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

During the year ended 31 December 2016 (the “Year”), the Company had
applied the principles and complied with all applicable code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code”] and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited [the "Stock Exchange” and the "GEM
Listing Rules”, respectively) except the deviation as stated below:

Pursuant to code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”] should attend the annual general meeting of the Company
(the "AGM"]. However, Mr. Wei Zhonghua ("Mr. Wei"), the Chairman, was
unable to attend the AGM held on 24 June 2016 (the "2016 AGM”) due to
other business engagements. In the absence of the Chairman, Mr. Sun
Jiangtao ("Mr. Sun”), an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company acted as chairman of the 2016 AGM to ensure an effective
communication with the Shareholders. Mr. Wei had a follow-up with Mr.
Sun for any opinions or concerns of the Shareholders expressed at the 2016
AGM.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to other engagements, all the independent non-executive
Directors (the "INEDs") and non-executive Directors were unable to attend
the 2016 AGM and certain INEDs and all the non-executive Directors were
unable to attend an extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
12 December 2016 [the "EGM”). To mitigate the above, future general
meetings would be scheduled earlier to avoid timetable clashes.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The Company will hold the 2017 AGM in Hong Kong so as to establish a good
communication channel with the Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the "Required Standard of
Dealings”] as its own code of conduct for dealings in the securities of the
Company by the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERKE (E)

Following a specific enquiry of all Directors made by the Company, each of
them confirmed that he had complied with the Required Standard of
Dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the

Directors during the Year.

THE BOARD

During the Year, the Board comprised of two executive Directors, namely
Mr. Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer] and Mr. Tang Bin, three non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Wei Zhonghua (Chairman], Mr. Li Jianguang
and Mr. Lan Xi and three INEDs, namely Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong
and Mr. He Qinghua.

Relationship

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship
among the Directors. The biographical details of each of the Directors are
set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior Management Profiles”
of this annual report.

Roles

The two executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and control
of the Company and overseeing the Group's businesses, strategic decisions
and performances of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) and
are collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by

directing and supervising its affairs.

The three INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial
and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance
in the Board in order to effectively exercise independent judgement on the
corporate actions of the Company so as to protect Shareholders’ interest

and overall interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs and at all times met
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.
The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual written

confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules and considers all the INEDs to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERBHE (E)

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the management
of the Company’s business and the Group's affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value through granting authority to the Company’s
audit committee (the “Audit Committee”]), nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) and remuneration committee (the "Remuneration
Committee”). The Board approves and monitors the development and
implementation of the Group’s business policies, strategic decisions and
directions. The Board is also responsible for reviewing monthly financial
information as well as reviewing and approving quarterly, interim and
annual results, annual budget, and other business matters and all other
functions reserved to the Board under the Company's articles of association
(the “Articles of Association”). In addition, it performs the corporate
governance functions. The Board may from time to time delegate certain
functions to senior management of the Group if and when considered
appropriate. The senior management is mainly responsible for the execution
of the business plans, strategies and policies adopted by the Board and

assigned to it from time to time.

The Board and its Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’'s expenses in order to better
discharge their supervisory duties to the Company.

In accordance with Rule A.1.8 of the CG Code, appropriate insurance cover
has been arranged by the Company in order to provide protection in respect
of legal action against its Directors and senior management.

Meeting

During the Year, the Board held four regular meetings each at
approximately quarterly interval. In addition, special Board meetings are
held when required. Formal notice for each proposed regular meeting are
given at least 14 days before the day of the meeting. With regard to special
Board meetings, notices are issued within a reasonable period. The meeting
agenda and all the accompanying documents relating to the proposed
Board meeting are sent to each Director at least three days before the day
of the proposed meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to
review relevant documents and prepare for the meeting. Directors can
attend the Board meeting in person or through other electronic means of

communication.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) or his
delegate is responsible for keeping all Board meetings minutes. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comments within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any Directors and
their close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) with a material
interest in the transactions to be discussed at the Board meetings will
abstain from voting on resolutions approving such transactions and will not

be counted in the quorum at meetings.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERHE (E)

Attendances of Meetings

Four Board meetings, four Audit Committee meetings, one meeting for each
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, an AGM
and an EGM were held during the Year. Attendances of these meetings by

the Directors are set out below:
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Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee = Committee AGM EGM
B BE BE
EEHE BEEXg FEE® YMEEE REZEE BFKRE $HAXE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao RILRBEE 46 N/ATEFA 1/1 11 11 11
Mr. Tang Bin = 414 N/ATEA N/ATER  N/ATER 0/1 0/1
Non-executive Directors FE#H77%&E F
Mr. Wei Zhonghua WP ELLE 4/ A N/ATNER  N/ATEA 0/1 0/1
Mr. Li Jianguang FRNESE 4lh N/ATE N/ATER  N/ATER 0/1 0/1
Mr. Lan Xi s 414 N/IATER N/AT 38 A N/AT @ A 0/1 0/1
INEDs BYUIFHMTEE
Mr. Hou Dong BREE 4lb bf4 Al 11 0/1 0/1
Mr. He Qinghua ] B £ A A N/ATEA  N/ATEA 0/1 1
Mr. Yang Haoran R T E 4/ 4l N/AZT 35 R (Al 0/1 0/1
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERBHE (E)

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of the Director’s responsibilities and obligations under
the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements. The Company is
dedicated to arrange appropriate induction for the continuous professional
development for all Directors at the Company's expenses to develop,

replenish and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The Company from time to time provides briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors
are also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense.

During the Year, all Directors, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Tang Bin, Mr.
Wei Zhonghua, Mr Li Jianguang, Mr. Lan Xi, Mr. Yang Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong
and Mr. He Qinghua have participated in continuous professional
development by attending conferences and internal training as regards
corporate governance, laws, regulations and the GEM Listing Rules, and
reading materials relevant to their duties, responsibilities and the Group’'s

business in order to develop, refresh and update their knowledge and skills.

Training records for the Year have been provided by all Directors to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman is Mr. Wei Zhonghua, and the chief executive officer of the
Company is Mr. Sun Jiangtao. The roles of the Chairman and chief executive

are separated and exercised by different individuals.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors and the INEDs has entered into a letter

of appointment for a term of two years.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TEERKE (E)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established, with written terms of reference, three Board
Committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’'s affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient

resources to discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Board Committee are in line with
the GEM Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective websites of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”] and the

Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other things, to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least annually, make recommendations to
the Board regarding the appointment of Directors and candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board; and assess the independence of INEDs. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yang
Haoran, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Yang Haoran is the

chairman of the Nomination Committee.

During the Year, a meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to review
the structure, composition of the Board and the Board diversity policy; make
recommendation on the re-appointment of the retiring Directors and assess
the independence of INEDs. Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed

on page 46 of this report.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 9 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are, among other things, to
make recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the Group
and to ensure that none of the Directors determines his own remuneration.
The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hou
Dong, Mr. Yang Haoran and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Hou Dong is the chairman

of the Remuneration Committee.
During the Year, a meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee to

review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management.
Attendance of the meeting has been disclosed on page 46 of this report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

TRERBHE (E)

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are set out in Notes 9, 10 and 30(b] to the consolidated

financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration
of the member of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed "Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” in this annual report for the Year by band is set out
below:

BEENARNFSAEBAEHFH ZHEEN
RABIERERMFES - 10H130(b) A ©

REBEEERTA ZTAKEXEBISE &
REBRAB(BEERIMNZFEFMF BRI
MRAFEZFERESIEFNENEEABRRD
MR- HEENT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration band ¥t BN &8 A"
Less than HK$1,000,000 /L 741,000,0007% 7T 1

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 9 November 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG code. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee were revised and adopted on 30
December 2015 to include additional responsibility in relation to the risk
management system arising from the Stock Exchange’s proposal on the
risk management and internal control under the CG Code applicable to
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee, among other things, are:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-

appointment and removal of external auditor;

(b)  to review the financial statements and provide material advice in

respect of financial reporting;
(c]  tooversee internal control procedures of the Company;

(d)  to review arrangements for employees to raise concerns about

financial reporting improprieties;

(e} to review the financial control, risk management and internal control
system of the Company;

(f) to discuss about the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed its duty

to have effective systems; and

(g)  to consider major investigation findings on risk management and
internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on its own

initiative and management’s response to these findings.
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At present, the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. He
Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both being INEDs and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a
non-executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the chairman of the Audit

Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. Attendance of the
meetings has been disclosed on page 46 of this report.

The Audit Committee meetings reviewed (i) the first and third quarterly and
the interim results for 2016; (i) the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015;
adopted by the Group; [iv] assessed the risk management and internal

(iii) the accounting principles and practice

control systems; (v] reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit
function; and (vi] recommended to the Board for considering the re-
appointment of BDO Limited, certified public accountants as the Company’s
independent auditor [the “Independent Auditor”) at the 2016 AGM.

The annual results for the Year have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
at its meeting held on 24 March 2017 before submission to the Board for
approval. The members of the Audit Committee considered that the results
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and the

GEM Listing Rules and sufficient disclosure has been made.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy and discussed all

measurable objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
of the Company, which are set out in relevant written terms of reference.
The Board, among other matters, has reviewed this corporate governance
report in discharge of its corporate governance functions, ensuring

compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the Year amounted
to HK$560,000 (2015: HK$559,000). The amount of non-audit service fee was
HK$178,000 (2015: HK$112,000), primarily relating to the disposal of shares
in Leyu Limited in return for the consideration shares in Credit China
Fintech Holdings Limited.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and ensures that the financial statements have
adopted the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
complied with the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the GEM Listing Rules. The Board is also responsible for the keeping of
appropriate accounting records that reasonably and accurately disclose the
financial position of the Group at any time.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the

Independent Auditor’'s Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board has overall responsibilities for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing their effectiveness. The
Board is also responsible for maintaining sound and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the interests of the

Shareholders and the assets of the Group.

The Internal Audit Department has been established to, amongst others {i]
review the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems at least once every financial year; (b) carry out annual risk
assessment on each audit area; and (c) devise a yearly audit plan according

to their risk ratings.
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The systems include a defined management structure with limits of
authority, and are designed for the Group to identify and manage the
significant risks to achieve its business objectives, safeguard its assets
against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial information for
internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations. The systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss, and to manage
rather than eliminate risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and

in the achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

Appropriate measures have been put in place to manage the risks. No

major issue was raised for improvement.

During the Year, the Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and the Group's internal
audit function through discussion with the Audit Committee on audit

findings and control issue and considered them effective and adequate.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong and the GEM
Listing Rules and the overriding principle that inside information should be
announced immediately when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures
and internal controls for the handling and dissemination of inside

information are as follows:

o the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the GEM Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

J the Group has implemented and disclosed its policy on fair disclosure
by pursuing broad, non-exclusive distribution of information to the
public through channels such as financial reporting, public
announcements and its website;

o the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorized use of confidential or

inside information; and

o the Group has established and implemented procedures for
responding to external enquiries about the Group's affairs, so that
only the executive Directors, Company Secretary and investor
relations officers are authorized to communicate with parties outside
the Group.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Kwok Siu Man ("Mr. Kwok”), who has been
appointed by the Board since 9 November 2013 and has been so nominated
by Boardroom Corporate Services [HK) Limited ("Boardroom”] under an
engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom. The
primary person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting is
Ms. Yao Lanzi, the financial controller, the acting deputy chief financial
officer of the Company, in relation to corporate secretarial matters. As Mr.
Kwok was first appointed as the company secretary of a Hong Kong Hang
Seng Index constituent stock company in 1991 and has been acting in such
capacity for a number of other reputable companies listed on the Stock
Exchange at material times since then, he is not required to have at least 15
hours of relevant professional training in the Year under the GEM Listing
Rules. However, despite such exemption, he delivered/attended relevant
seminars organised by professional and other bodies for over 15 hours
during the Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an EGM

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, Shareholders
holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company can convene
an EGM by depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the
Company Secretary for the purpose of requiring the convening of the EGM.
The written requisition shall be deposited to the Company Secretary at 31/F,
148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.

Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for any
enquiries in relation to the Group by contacting the Group's Investor
Relations team at investorfdshenzhouxing.com.cn. Upon receipt of the
enquiries, the Investor Relations team will forward Shareholders’ enquiries
and concerns to the Board, Board committees or management as
appropriate. Alternatively, Shareholders can put forward any proposals at a

Shareholders’ meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the statutes and the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Company may from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an

additional director.

A Shareholder may propose a person [(other than himself/herself] for
election as a Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’'s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary:

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director; and

2. a notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected
as a Director, together with that person’s information as required to
be disclosed under rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Such notices shall be lodged no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election at least seven (7)
clear days before the date of the general meeting. The period for lodgement

of such notices shall be at least seven (7] clear days in length.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company its Memorandum and Articles of Association. During the Year, no
amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RR -HERERKRE

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the first ESG report by the Group, highlighting its environmental,
social, and governance performance. The report contents and mode are
disclosed with reference to the ESG Reporting Guide as described in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited is a high-tech digital technology
company, principally engaged in providing online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers. The Group
offers online transaction platform which could enable online game users to
pay their online game accounts through mobile top-up credits by operating
its self-developed Shenzhoufu System and cooperating with online game
operators in the People’s Republic of China ("PRC"). The Group uses the
mobile top-up credits received from online game users to top up mobile
subscription accounts. This ESG report mainly covers the Group's overall
performance in two subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the
Beijing Operation Office and its main business throughout the financial year
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to report on
for this ESG report, key stakeholders including investors, shareholders and
employees have been involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss
and make relevant comments to assist the Group in determining the
disclosure aspects of the report, give advice on the potential growth of
business and be prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

Apart from the above stakeholders, the Group also welcomes other
stakeholders’ feedback on our environmental, social and governance
approach and performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via mail to é/F, Taiyue Park No. 1 Building, Haidian District,
Beijing, China
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SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The Group is dedicated to providing the clients with the best and fastest
online transaction platform and the public with the easy and convenient
transaction methods so as to promote the development of online transaction
in China, to boost the inter-connection development of various industries,
and to contribute to the real economy driven by the virtual economy.

Vision an Environment, Social and Governance

The online transaction is supposed to significantly reduce the transactional
costs consumed by the offline transaction, as well as the transportation
cost, energy and time so as to help the emission reduction on the Earth.

The good working conditions shall be offered to employees so that each of
them is capable of exploiting their advantages to the full at China Binary
Sale Technology Limited. The transaction service shall be provided to the

society to boost the economic development.

As a responsible corporate citizen, the culture of good governance, the fair
working environment and honest corporate administration are supposed to
be established.

A. ENVIRONMENT

During the reporting period, carbon emissions generated from the
main activities of the Group include electricity, petrol, water, and
paper. As the main workplace of the Group is the general office, its
business does not involve in production-related air, water, and land
pollutions which are regulated under national laws and regulations.
The total office area of the Group is 1,630m? while the operating
activities and business of the Group’s Beijing office account for 100%

of its emissions.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE #H8gRERHE (E)

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION: BERBEHEK:
Emission
Equivalent  Total Emission
Scope of Greenhouse Gas Emission Emission Sources Consumption (in tonnes of CO2e) [in percentage)
BEREHREE B BOROR HEE FEREE BENRE
(W 5t (AZtk)
—gStmEE)
Scope 1
Direct Emission Petrol consumed by 6,905 L 18.70 31.26%
Company Owned Fleet
& [E —
HEBENK ARBEEBOHEREZ T 6,905 18.70 31.26%
Scope 2
Indirect Emission Purchased Electricity 46,726.4 KWh 41.12 68.74%
gHE—
LEE327 BENER 46,726.4TE 4112 68.74%
Total Emission 59.82
BYME
DENSITY OF GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSION: BERBHEREBE:
Carbon dioxide (tonnes)
=& b bz (W)
Per capita ABHE 0.68
Average volume/m? BYHAHE 0.37
The aforementioned methods for calculating the emission volume of N EZE bR ER = 2F7T
carbon dioxide refer to the international commonly-used standards BERARERBZIMWHIIES  EH R
and the by-laws and guides of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing EEEOEHRELREENR  BaA—
Limited. When the Group measured the scope and the materiality, the BHRBALREBOEBUE 2B IKE
stakeholders agreed that due to the business nature of the Group and KRB TSR - B A TR AR P EE A A AR
the low frequency of business travel, the carbon emission produced PREEASEEEN  BUEERMAA
by the business travel is considered as insignificant, and consequently ENETELEE  W07FHRFERBR
it is not calculated in the total amount of emission. If the annual BEMEs rXEBEERBABEIKRERN
financial conditions in 2017 changes, the Group will consider including EENMENAGTEES -

the emission produced by the business travel into the calculation of
total amount.
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CHERESR

HE ()

Efforts Made to Reduce Emissions

1.

The Group is principally engaged in providing online transaction
services by facilitating transactions between online game
operators and online game users and providing mobile top-up
service to mobile subscribers. Our business nature is allowing
the majority of common clients to complete mobile top-up
service in the convenient way through the online platform,
reducing the consumed time and energy by the transportation,
thus substantially cutting down the emission for the society.

We installed lighting fixtures with voice-operated switch at the
corridor of our office. When nobody pass by, the lights shall be
automatically turned off. In addition, the culture of energy
conservation is popular at the Group, which encourages each
employee to turn off the electric equipment (including computer

and calculator] before he/she leaves the office.

The energy-efficient air conditioners at the office are equipped
with thermostat and energy-saving mode.

No policy of the Group ever explicitly regulates that electric
appliance and other products to be purchased must be the
energy-conservation ones. However, practically, products with
label of energy conservation were chosen. We will consider the
policy of purchasing energy-conservation products in the 2017
fiscal year.

Four vehicles used by the Group including three business-
purpose vehicles and one car were purchased after full

consideration of energy-conservation factor.
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Efforts in Reducing Wastes

1. As a developer of software, we will not cause any substantial
pollution due to the nature of our industry, and no raw material
shall be consumed in the long run. Since all of our clients are
corporates, software provided by the Group will not be delivered
by compact disc or similar media and no raw materials are

consumed.

2. No policy of the Group requires the draft to be printed only on
one side of the paper with the other side abandoned, and no
setting has been premade for the printing on two sides of paper.
However, except some necessary circumstances, our
employees have developed the habits of printing the draft only
on recycled paper, or printing other materials on two sides.

3. Canteen of the Company is being operated by the third party,

and the tableware is all reusable.

4. Designated recycling collectors recycle the used ink cartridges
of printers which shall be reused for filling toner.

5. Paper used by the Group is unbleached. It's encouraged that no
paper shall be used in the office and the replacement of paper
documents with digital ones are maximized to reduce the

consumption of paper.

Resource Use

The Group is a software developer with no substantial production and
operation, thus no raw material and significant amount of resource is
consumed. The Group’s general office operation has relatively low
water consumption per capita. Except the urban tap water, no natural
water resource such as surface water or underground water is used.
This kind of water consumption theoretically doesn’t threaten the
environment substantially. During the reporting period, a total of 617

tonnes of water has been consumed.

Besides, totally 694 kg of paper has been used during the reporting
period, mainly for the printing purpose. No packaging materials have

been used.

So far, no detailed data from the official channel involves with the
energy-consumption indicators of Beijing for tap water and the
treatment of waste water, as well as the detailed distribution for the
treatment of disposed domestic waste. We cannot calculate the
indirect emission of greenhouse gas caused by the consumption of
tap water and paper in this fiscal year. However, the consumption
volume of this fiscal year is supposed to be low, and constitutes no
significant indicators. Thus, no relevant disclosure is made in this

report.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

I%

BoHEgRERES (B)

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

During the reporting period, no incompliance of relevant
environmental-protection laws and regulations is reported to the

Group and no significant influences have been made to the Group.

In the future, the Group will continue to proactively reduce resource
consumption and make great contributions to the environmental
protection.

SOCIAL

Employment and Labour Practices
EMPLOYMENT

Employees are the most valuable asset of the Group. It is the policy of
the Group to offer equal opportunities to qualified people who will be
given competitive salaries. The Group will also abide by relevant
employment law and regulations.

The Group had a total number of 82 employees as of 31 December
2016 and the gender ratio of men and women in the management was
two to one. There were no part-time employees. The following table
shows the overall gender and age group distribution of the Group:

By Gender
UM R&E S

Male
B
51%

The Group offers competitive remuneration, promotional opportunity,
compensation and benefit packages to attract and retain talents.
Salaries are subject to the market trend, while market trend will be
studied by external remuneration reports and communication in
interviews, etc. In addition, reviews and adjustments will be made
through performance evaluation every year.
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Working hours and vacations of the Group are strictly implemented in
accordance with Labour Law of the PRC, standard working hours and
national regulations of public holidays festivals and anniversaries. The
Group has always people-oriented and does not support overtime

working unless necessary.

The Group employed FESCO, a professional human resource service
company, to provide human resource services with complete
dismissal and job relocation schemes formulated. Employees can
address their dissatisfaction by internal communication or established
procedures of FESCO.

Although there is no clear anti-discrimination policy in the Group,
there are no requirements of gender, religion, race, physical
characteristics and family status are not added in recruitment. Up to
now, no discrimination cases has occurred inside the Group. Anti-
discrimination regulations will be formally included in the policies of
the Group in the fiscal year of 2017.

Annual Turnover Rate

The turnover rate of the Group was 49% last year. The two main
reasons of such rate are that it is a usual characteristics of high-tech
software industry and the Group has cut staff for streamlining last

year.
Turnover Rate by Gender

70.00% — BRI R 100.00%
90.00%
60.00% = 80.00%
50.00% 70.00%
| 60.00%
40.00% 50.00%
30.00% [~ 40.00%
o | 30.00%
20.00% 20.00%
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RE #H8gRERHE (E)

AEBITERELEBE REEBRPE
ARKAMBELE % EXETIRKRRE2EF
RS BRBRIEERINTT AEE—
MAABR BROLBEI - W RIEEBET
PNPE SRR T4 -

AEEEBTEEANDERRE A A
FESCORBANERRY  BEBH B
BEFARERE TR EITMBEERMTR
A] 38 8 9 2B 3B A 8k FESCO W BE £ 72 ¢ %
He

REBRERAENREBERE  EHE
BTHIRBMATMAMER R &
T BRFE REMUSFEMER-
AEBEERNRAE LA HRAA A
EEABRBRERALR -AEEBGEER
017 FHBFEEAR - EA AR IR &P
MARBIREA

FERAE

ZFAEEEBTITNREBRAERED
2O+ RAXESNEIEREAAM
il —EEMEREFTEANRE =%
EEAKERBHAT  BETRENT
) o

Turnover Rate by Age
RERABIRAE

18-25

26-35 36-45 46-54 55 or above
5588 A =
BMEFHEFMERLIT —ET—REER

61



62

Other Benefits of the Group

The Group offers housing fund, supplementary medical insurance,
accident insurance, employer’s liability insurance, birthday and
holiday gifts, working lunch and other welfares in addition to those
regulated in the labour law. There are small-scale supermarket,
library, rest areas and fitness centres, etc. available for staff inside
the Company.

Employee Health and Safety

The operation of the Group belongs to general office operation and
does not involve high-risk or high hazard work. During the reporting
period, there are no reports of death for work and working day loss
for injury on duty in the Group.

All employees undergo full body check every year and enjoy full

reimbursement of medical costs according to the Group’s policy.

The Group conducts fire drill every year.

Development and Training

Comprehensive professional training is provided to employees to
deliver best services to our customers. The Group provides
management and professional skill training for senior management
and internal training for lower management and general employees.

During the reporting period, all employees of the Group receive
training lasting for one to three days. All sorts of training contents,
total training time and specific training time of different ranks are not
recorded.

Employee Communication

The Group actively engages and motivates employees through various
communication channels and provides internal training to allow
employees to share work experience and work skills.

Labour Standard

Neither child nor forced labour was employed in the Group's
operations in the reporting period. Background checks of employees
are performed to insure that their ages meet the statutory standard in
recruitment.
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Supply Chain Management

Given that the Group does not engage in production and consumption
of raw materials, it is unnecessary to categorize the region of

suppliers and record the number of suppliers.

Our procurements are mainly office supplies. While purchasing
products, impacts on environment will be considered during
procurement process. Thus products made from renewable materials

are preferred.

Product Responsibility

There is no product safety problem in the Group as it only provides
virtual products and services. Misleading problems of advertisements
do not exist as customers of the Group are organizations. There is no
such case that products have to be recycled due to quality or safety

reasons.

A customer service center is established to deal with service
complaints.

Intellectual Property

The Group is a software developer, thus we attach great importance
to intellectual property. The Group has signed the agreement of not
using pirated software of which all softwares are genuine. A policy of
the Group stipulates that pirated software is forbidden to be

downloaded or used in the Company.

Labour contracts and confidentiality agreements signed by employees
while they begin to work in the Group include detailed and strict
articles that protect intellectual property of employees and the Group.

Consumer Privacy

The Group provides customers with payment platform which involves
a great number of public users. It is evident that customers’ privacy is
essential. The Group adopts such encryption methods as 3des, rsa
and md5 to store customer data and protect data by means of some

ways like hardware firewall, software firewall and data isolation.

Stability of network is ensured and abnormal network disconnection
is prevented by multiline, spare machines and going on duty for 24
hours.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
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BoHEgRERES (B)

Anti-corruption

According to Article 9 4(3) of labour contract of the Group, employees
who neglect their duty, commit malpractices and cause great
damages to interests of the Company will be dismissed despite that

the Group has no clear anti-corruption policy.

Moreover, the Group has sound purchasing policy. While selecting
important suppliers, purchasing department, user department,
internal control department and general manager will form an
assessment team to evaluate suppliers in terms of reputation, finance
and quality control etc. The assessment team has to submit
assessment report and sign to confirm it after assessment. Suppliers
assessed to be disqualified cannot be registered in the supplier list.
Sound purchasing policy makes illegal kickbacks impossible.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group did not invest in communities because it has been founded
for a short period of time. The Group will actively play its role and

make contributions to communities in the fiscal year of 2017.

Future Development of the Group

The Group will continue to make efforts to improve the environment
and social responsibility indicators. We will formulate anti-
discrimination and anti-corruption regulations in 2017 and make

minute reports about them in the annual report of 2017.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

BB ERE

IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{HH : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Binary Sale
Technology Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”] set out on pages 71 to 136, which comprise the consolidated
December 2016, and the

consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated

statement of financial position as at 31

statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"] issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ["HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Qur responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”], and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2016. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued]
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Determining whether the Group is acting as a principal
or as an agent in respect of online transaction services

Refer to note 5(d] to the consolidated financial statements

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised online
transaction services income of RMB30,560,000, all of which is presented on
a net basis since the Group considered that it is acting as agent rather than
as principal.

The Group is acting as a principal only when it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the
rendering of service. The features of an entity when it is acting as a principal
included (i) being primarily responsibility to provide goods or services; [ii]
exposure to inventory risk; (iii) establishing price; and (iv) exposure to credit
risk. The directors assess whether the Group is acting as a principal or as
an agent by reviewing all the relevant facts and circumstances and the

substance of the online transaction services provided.

We identified the accounting for revenue from provision of online transaction
service as a key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgement on determining the position of the Group in providing
the online transaction services, and was assessed by us to be a significant

risk of material misstatement.
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment of whether the
Group is acting as a principal or as an agent in the provision of online

transaction services included:

— Evaluating whether the Group’s presentation of revenue on a gross
basis (as a principal] versus a net basis (as an agent] was in

conformity with the applicable revenue recognition framework;

— Reviewing the key factors in the underlying business model, including
the Group’s inventory level, and sales and purchase contracts [on a
sampling basis] to determine whether the Group has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the provision of online

transaction services;
—  Performing IT systems audit to confirm our understanding about the

Group’s business model and substance of the provision of online
transaction services.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued]
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Impairment assessment of unlisted available-for-sale
financial assets

Refer to note 5(g) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had unlisted available-for-sale financial assets of approximately
RMB30,180,000 as at 31 December 2016

Management concluded that other than the impairment disclosed in note
17, there is no impairment on the unlisted available-for-sale financial
assets based on the circumstances of the investees, including any
significant changes with an adverse effect that has taken place in
market,

technological, economic or legal environment in which the

investees operate.

We identified the impairment assessment of unlisted available-for-sale
financial assets as a key audit matter as it requires management to exercise
significant judgement on determining any impairment indicator in relation
to the Group’'s investments existed at the end of the reporting period, and
was assessed by us to be a significant risk of material misstatement.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment assessment

included:
— Understanding on the investees’ operations and latest development;
— Assessing the financial performance of the investees;

— Comparing the carrying amount with the transaction value of the
investees’ equity interest during the year;

— Challenging the reasonableness of management’'s key assumptions
adopted in the impairment assessment based on our knowledge of

the business and industry.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Financial Summary,
Management Discussion and Analysis, Directors and Senior Management
Profiles, Corporate Governance Report and Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon), which we obtained prior to
the date of this auditor’'s report, and Chairman’s Statement and Report of
the Directors, which are expected to be made available to us shortly after
that date.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued]
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not and will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, on the other information that we
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Chairman’s Statement and Report of the Directors, if we
conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to audit committee of the Company the (“Audit
Committee”) and take appropriate action considering our legal rights and
obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process. The audit committee assists the directors in discharging
their responsibility in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued]
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material

uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued]

BYZBMERE (&)

report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Alfred Lee
Practising Certificate Number P04960

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SeEZHEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

2016
Notes RMB’000
B 5 AR®BFT
Revenue A 7 30,965
Cost of revenue W A BK AR (8,525)
Gross profit EH 22,440
Other income and gains H o A R s 7 179,983
Change in fair value of financial assets at RAFEFABEN SR
fair value through profit or loss BEERATEED 1,393
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHFAXZ (4,530)
Administrative expenses THAX (22,932)
Gain from a bargain purchase = (B U W 34 372
Profit before income tax expense % P15 154 78 =2 Al 4 A 8 176,726
Income tax expense PG HiF " (22,099)
Profit for the year F Ay 7 A 154,627
Other comprehensive income Hitt 2 E K=
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HE&SKEEHOHEE
to profit or loss: BmEIER
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AfEE SR EEN
financial assets NFEZE 34,717
Other comprehensive income for the year FAEMEE W 34,717
Total comprehensive income for theyear FRZEKFEAE 189,344
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: NTFEEEGERER
(B5#8) :
Owners of the Company ZiN/NEIEZ PN 156,054
Non-controlling interests IE 12 IR HE = (1,427)
154,627
Total comprehensive income DT&BEELCFEANZEKE
for the year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company ZIN/NECTE? ¥ =N 190,771
Non-controlling interests I 2 iR (1,427)
189,344
Earnings per share (RMB cents) BERAEF(ARES)
— Basic —HR 13

BN FHERMARDF

2015
RMB'000
ARETTT

48,329
(6,827)

41,502
1,651

386
(3,115)
(15,120)

25,304
(7,032)

18,986
(714)

18,272

18,986
(714)

18,272

3.96
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

w5 B3R R &R

As at 31 December 2016 1201651283180

2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
bR AR®EFT R ARET T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE REE 14 1,505 1,839
Intangible assets mEEE 15 3,002 2,131
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEESREE 17 174,186 20,910
Long term prepayments =3 REENE 2,600 —
Total non-current assets ERBEEMETE 181,293 24,880
Current assets REEE
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REYGRIE R EKEE 18 8,685 3,360
Prepayments, deposits and AR e REAM
other receivables & Uk TR I8 19 72,481 48,884
Inventories FE 20 19,932 54,809
Amounts due from related companies FE U B 3 1 R KA 21 484 2,942
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEGFABZH
profit or loss EREE 22 2,379 986
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEED 23 164,808 45499
Total current assets e & EE AR 268,769 176,480
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables 2 5 R RIE 24 89,708 45,760
Other payables and accruals HtENREREFER 25 10,714 13,839
Current tax liabilities BIHAFE S B & 19,437 1,365
Total current liabilities mEN B E AR 119,859 60,964
Net current assets REBEEZRE 148,910 115,516
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAER 330,203 140,396
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

e TR RR (&)

As at 31 December 2016 120165128318

2016
Notes RMB’000
M & AR®ET R
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities R EE 26 8,498
Total non-current liabilities FERBBELERE 8,498
NET ASSETS EEFE 321,705
Equity attributable to owners of RATEEBA
the Company s
Issued capital BBITRA 27 2,941
Reserves & 307,479
310,420
Non-controlling interests IE 1 B R 11,285
TOTAL EQUITY R 321,705

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Wei Zhonghua
B

Director

EF

Sun Jiangtao
Director

EF

BN FHERMARDF

2015
RMB'000
ARETTT

133,523

2,941
116,697

119,638
13,885

133,523

ZE-REER
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

REREZSEX

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FAREEAELER
Investment Non-
Issued Share Capital ~ Statutory revaluation  Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity
REER
ERTREA RHEE EXRE EERE wE  RERA @i FERER arEs
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFE ARETT AREFT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT AREFT AR®ETR
(note 28(a)) (note 28[b)] (note 28[c)) (note 28(d]] (note 28(e))
(M3E (M3 (& (& CE:
28(a)) 28(b]) 28(c]) 28(d)) 28[e))
At 1 January 2015 R2015E1A18 2,941 47899 1371 12,578 = 35,863 100,652 1,324 101,976
Profit/{loss) and total ~ EREF/(BE)
comprehensive income R 2EWHLEE
for the year - - - - - 18,986 18,986 (714) 18,272
Capital contribution from 38 & f{ & 2 73
non-controlling equity ~ ERERFEE
holders of subsidiaries B/ & &KX 4 = = = = = = - 13,275 13,275
Appropriation to statutory & Ak 7E 1
reserve = = = 2,535 - (2,535) - - -
At 31 December 2015and 722015 12 A 318
1 January 2016 R2016F181R 2,941 47,899 137 15,113 = 52314 119,638 13,885 133,523
Profit/lloss| for the year & 7/ (&18) 156,054 156,054  (1,427) 154,627
Change in fair value of ~ AJ L% & B
available-for-sale BENLTE
financial assets #E)
Total comprehensive ~ ZEME#E
income 156,054 190,771 (1,627) 189,344
Acquisition of WEHB AT
non-controlling FERER

interests of a subsidiary
Disposal of a subsidiary & — K &

(note 35) Al (B £35)
Appropriation to statutory % A% 7 i

reserve 1,997 (1,997)
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12 318 17,110 206,382
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R AR T T
Profit before income tax expense B BT 15 %4 B9 X2 A % R 176,726 25,304
Adjustments for: KR
Interest income BB A (902) (1,338)
Depreciation of property, M BB REE
plant and equipment e 551 527
Written off of property, plant and equipment i $5 %1 % B E & & — 2
Amortisation of intangible assets A B 258 292
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AMEEemEE
financial assets B (E B 1R 100 —
Impairment loss on prepayments T FOR E &8 132 301
Change in fair value of financial assets at BATEFABRRZNEF
fair value through profit or loss BEEATEEZS (1,393) (386)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHEESMEER
financial assets W &= (178,015) =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB 2 A e e (151) =
Deemed gain on disposal of available-for-  R{EEEa &
sale financial assets T RE E N (93) =
Gain from a bargain purchase EERE ks (Kyp)] =
Operating (loss)/profit before HEESBHAILE
working capital changes (&), 7 (3,159) 24,702
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills B 5 R TIE R EREE
receivables (3 ), @ (5,464) 31
Increase in prepayments, TR e RE M EIK
deposits and other receivables RIS N (1,269) (19,540
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEEmL,/(Em) 34,672 (18,698)
Decrease in amounts due from JE W5 B 38 1 R R IE R A
related companies 2,458 1,031
Increase in trade payables B 5 P SRIEIE N 43,948 3,771
(Decreasel/increase in other payables Hith fE FRIE N FEET B
and accruals R,/ 48 (3,588) 4,093
Cash generated from/(used in) operations #3Ef#8 (FiH)R& 67,598 (4,610)
Income taxes paid BEATATER (2,921) (3,446)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEKRE (A RS
operating activities FE (8,056)

BN FHERMARDF
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities REZBHMBREESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E 1% - BB L& & (185) (829)
Purchase of intangible assets BEERTVEE (194) (285)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEHLESHEE

financial assets (19,411) (19,610)
Prepayments of long term investments B REAKRE (2,600) =
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale Hi& Al it i & £ Fh & EFF 15

financial assets IE 78,567 —
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary, B M E A F (R & 8

net of cash disposed R&) 2 PSHIE 1,604 —
Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary, W B BT B8 & R] (HBR BB Y

net of cash acquired RE)FAEHE 530 —
Advances to an investment classified as DERAHLEESREE

available-for-sale financial asset and its RERRMEB AR ZKE

fellow subsidiaries EE (4,281) (4,820)
Interest received B FH B2 902 1,338

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities R & EE B (FrA)

ReFHE (24,206)
Cash flows from financing activities BRETHEECRSRE
Capital contribution from non-controlling DL SEPNGIE 2
equity holders of a subsidiary FHEENERNILIE 12,941
Payment for acquisition of non-controlling WK B A R FEEREE 2
interests of a subsidiary R -
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities B ESEE (FTH) FFERE
F 12,941
Net increase/(decrease) in cash ReRBEELEEWEM
and cash equivalents SR E 58 119,309 (19,321)
Cash and cash equivalents FHURERES
at the beginning of year £EY 64,820
Cash and cash equivalents FREGRES
at the end of year ZEY 164,808 45,499
Analysis of the balances of cash HeRBLEBYEH
and cash equivalents Sk
Cash and bank balances R & MIRTT 4 5% 164,808 45,499
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e TBmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the "Company’] was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 11 May 2011. Its issued shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (the "GEM"] of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited [the "Stock Exchange”). The Company's registered
office and principal place of business are located at P.O. Box 31119,
Grand Pavilion, Hibiscus Way, 802 West Bay Road, Grand Cayman
KY1-1205, Cayman Islands and 3rd Floor, No.1 Building TaiYueYuan,
Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC")

respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”] are principally
engaged in providing online transaction services by facilitating
transactions between online game operators and online game users,

and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”] to
rationalise the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the
Company became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are as set out in "History and Development” of the

prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November 2013.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION

(a) Basis of presentation

As a result of the Reorganisation mentioned in note 1, the
Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from the
Reorganisation since management and equity holders of the
entities comprising the Group which took part in the
Reorganisation remained the same before and after the
Reorganisation. Consequently, immediately after the
Reorganisation, there was a continuation of risks and benefits
to the ultimate controlling parties that existed prior to the

Reorganisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND
PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the "HKFRSs") and the
disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
In addition, the financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(c) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for the available-
for-sale listed securities and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, which are measured at fair value.

(d) Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
Renminbi ['/RMB”], which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

(a) Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 January 2016

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014
Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 and

HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 41

Agriculture: Bearer Plants

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Investment Entities: Applying the

Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of

Interests in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued) 3. RABTRMBREER
(%)
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) 2 MM 18 & R & WA |
but are not yet effective i RIETEBUBRE
%= A
The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the AT ASENBERERE
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet AL/ MG T BB B 1 o A A
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group. The B EM - B RERTRERE
Group’s current intention is to apply these changes on the date M R - NEE B Al E R %
they become effective. FEAEYZARERBZEE
&) o
Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows' BAGIEA Rengr
FTROERT
Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes' BA G ER PRISHL
F125 B ERT
HKFRS ¢ Financial Instruments’ BEAMBHRELR SRMTA
FIH
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEAMBHREREA FELRAHKA’
Customers’ 155
Amendments to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with BEMBEHRELEL BELEHRAN’
Customers? F155EERT
HKFRS 16 Leases’ BEAMBHRE LN ME
1658
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 1 RR20174 1 A1 8 sk A 12 B8 48
January 2017 Y 4F [ HA RS ARk
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ’ 7201841 A1 8 sk A 12 B8 18
January 2018 B F 2 HA R AR R
: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 ’ FR201941 A1 H s b 1R B fR
January 2019 # 6F JE B fR] AE
Amendments to HKAS 7 — Statement of Cash Flows BB EAETRNBE
Iﬁﬁimg%%
The amendments introduce an additional disclosure that will ZEEFIBIA—BETIRE - &
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in BBBRRERERANTBEARME
liabilities arising from financing activities. EEELNEEE
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Income Taxes BB EAE 125 NIEET
— s %R
The amendments relate to the recognition of deferred tax &R A B i RIE T TR IR B E KRB
assets and clarify some of the necessary considerations, BETHBAZRMNEER  SFEMMA
including how to account for deferred tax assets related to debt BEAAFEFENEL AR
instruments measured of fair value. FERIER IEE E AR -
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows [the business
model test] and that have contractual terms that give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow
characteristics test) are generally measured at amortised cost.
Debt instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ("FVTOCI"] if the objective of the entity's
business model is both to hold and collect the contractual cash
flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other
debt and equity instruments are measured at fair value through
profit or loss ("FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for
all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect their
risk management activities in financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

3. KABRBYBHREEA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued) 3. KABRBMBBEER
()
(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) B MM {E & R &£ MW E
but are not yet effective (Continued) h RIETEEMBRE
2 Al ()
HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with EBMBHREERE 1558 —
Customers EFEHNWA
The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition BRAHAEARLE — =R
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an entity ER - EXRNFZRANAELEER
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised R NHAEEIE R
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the mEREEBAEREN SRR
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in BPHEZEMAFZR MRS &HE
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes B RS ER FE 15 MR R AW
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 mHERIES  BIER A ERE
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related 185k [ W] BB GETERIE 115
interpretations. [RESHIRBERE -
HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to BB REEAFE 155 8 T E
revenue recognition: R U 5 P RE PR Y T {IE 2B
e Step 1. Identify the contract(s) with a customer o E1HBRIEFEFMAEIZNER
e Step2: lIdentify the performance obligations in the contract o E2H  HAAGAMNENET
e Step3: Determine the transaction price e FIF EEXRFHER
e Step4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance e BUHS DERIFIERESEL
obligation BE
e Step5: Recognise revenue when each performance o FHH REBITRBHNEMEE
obligation is satisfied R W =

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue %5 jﬁiﬁ%g’g/ﬁlj F1550 B 7
related topics that may change the current approach taken HAge N E BB IEIE S AT B R

under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

Amendments to HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with customers

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included clarifications on
identification of performance obligations; application of
principal versus agent; licenses of intellectual property; and

transition requirements.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSS (continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS
17 “Leases” and related interpretations, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12
months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,
under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-
use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased
asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make
lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee should recognise
depreciation of the right-of use asset and interest on the lease
liability, and also classifies cash repayments of the lease
liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and
presents them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-
of-use asset and the lease liability are initially measured on a
present value basis. The measurement includes non-
cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be
made in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an option
to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly
different from the lessee accounting for leases that are
classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard,
HKAS 17.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two

types of leases differently.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial changes to the

Group's accounting policies and financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and the entities (including
structured entities) now comprising the Group. Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies together
with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is

recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss
on disposal is calculated as the difference between [(i] the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets [including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
subsidiary are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’'s share of
subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is
attributed to such non-controlling interests even if this results

in those non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: (1] power over the
investee, (2) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (3] the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of

these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position (see note 29),
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment
loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the

Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
rates, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

The depreciation rates are as follows:

Office equipment 5years
Computer equipment 5years
Motor vehicles 5years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’'s estimated

recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on

disposal.

Lease

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentive received
from the lessor are charged to the profit or loss on the straight-

line basis over the lease terms.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

d 31 December 2016 &£ 201612 A318IEFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(e) Intangible assets

(i)

(ii)

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value at the date of
acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with finite
lives are carried at cost
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

useful less accumulated

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful live as
follows:

Computer software 5-10years
Internally generated intangible assets (research
and development costs)

Expenditure on internally developed products is
capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

J it is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

o adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

o there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

. the Group is able to sell the product; and

o sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal
projects are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e)

(f)

Intangible assets (continued)

(iii) Impairment
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired (see the accounting policies in respect of
impairment losses of non-financial assets in note 4(f)).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and long term prepayments to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer

exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount [i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use] of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The value-in-use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the assets and the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value by using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the assets for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

d 31 December 2016 &£ 201612 A318IEFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial assets when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was
acquired. Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and all other
financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular way
purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
asset within the time frame established generally by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

4 FTEESTTHE @

(g) Financial instruments (continued) (g) eI Aum

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They arise principally through the provision
of goods and services to clients (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets. At each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified

impairment losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in
other categories of financial assets. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these assets are carried at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for impairment losses and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary instruments,

which are recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

d 31 December 2016 &£ 201612 A318IEFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(g) Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial
asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset and that event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset that can
be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o a breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

o granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s

financial difficulty; and

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the
impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have had the impairment not been

recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ende

4. SIGNIF

(Continued)

(g) Fina
(ii)

China Binary Sale Tec

d 31 December 2016 &£ £2016F12A318ILFE

ICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

ncial instruments (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)
For available-for-sale financial assets

Where a decline in the fair value constitutes objective
evidence of impairment, the amount of the loss is
removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss.

Any impairment losses on available-for-sale debt
investments are subsequently reversed in profit or loss if
an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

For available-for-sale equity investment, any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised

in other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss is not reversed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities
With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial liabilities when it becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument
and classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition,

depending on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost,
including trade payables, other payables and accruals,
and amounts due to a related company and subsidiaries,
are initially recognised at fair value, net of directly
attributable transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

liv) Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset

or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

(v) Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(vi) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for

derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled

or expired.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from online transaction services represents service
fees received from mobile subscribers and online game users,
net of monies shared with the online game operators pursuant
to the terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators or the costs of mobile top-up credits sourced from
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors.
Revenue is recognised when online transactions have been

completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i)

(j)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from provision of information technology services is

recognised when services are provided.

Revenue from online advertising services is recognised in the
period in which the advertisement is displayed on a straight-line

basis, and when collection of the receivable is probable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal

outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred

tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for recognised assets and
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits,
deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised
based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(j)

(k)

(U

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised to other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment
in which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded
at the rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign
currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Employee benefits

(il Pension schemes

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll costs to the central pension
schemes. The contributions are charged to the profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e SRR MR ()

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(U

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii) Other benefits
The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for

benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in
an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably

estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events,
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability

of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the

asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Related parties

(a] A person or a close member of that person’s family is

related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

(b]  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(o) Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(vii] A person identified in (al(i] has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

[viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which itis a
part, provides key management personnel services

to the Group or to the Company’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(i) children of that person’'s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(i)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse

or domestic partner.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered

to be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Impairment allowances for trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade and
bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables by assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This requires the use
of estimates and judgments. Allowances are applied to trade
and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will
affect the carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such estimate is
changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances at
the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of intangible assets and property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives for the intangible assets and the property, plant and
equipment of the Group. The estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of
similar nature and functions. The estimated useful lives could
be different as a result of technical innovations which would
affect the related amortisation and depreciation charges
included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

Estimate of income and deferred tax
provisions

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the amount of
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the income and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination was made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS 5. = =& ¥ B & 145
AND ESTIMATES (continued

d BEXZRBWARER

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online

transaction services

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the
online transaction services and suppliers of online transaction
services and determines that the Group is providing online
transaction services in the majority of transactions by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and
online game users, and providing online transaction services to
mobile subscribers and online game users, and accordingly

reports revenue derived from such services on a net basis.

In determining whether the revenue from online transaction
services shall be recorded on net basis or gross basis, the
Group has made reference to indicators and requirements
stated in HKAS 18 "Revenue”. Determining whether the Group
is acting as a principal or an agent requires judgment and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances, and the
Group considers itself has an agency relationship with online
game operators under HKAS 18 by assessing the following

features that are arising from its operations:

o [t is the primary responsibility of the PRC
telecommunication companies and the online game
operators, and not the Group, for processing the mobile
top-up associated with the mobile top-up credits provided
to the mobile subscribers and the delivery of online game

products to the online game users, respectively.

o The Group has minimal inventory risk for the transactions
with mobile top-up credits sourced from the online game
users as those mobile top-up credits are used to top up
the mobile subscriber’s requests instantaneously.
Although the Group sources some mobile top-up credits
from the PRC telecommunication companies and their
distributors as buffer stocks in case there is a shortage of
mobile top-up credits from online game users, these

stocks are used solely to facilitate the transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Revenue recognition in respect of online
transaction services (Continued)

o The service fees are usually predetermined pursuant to
the terms of the cooperation agreements with online
game operators.

. The credit risk of the Group is minimal as majority of the
mobile subscribers and online game users either pay in
advance or at time of requesting online transaction
services, except for a minor portion of customers who are

granted with credit period.

After assessing the above features, the Group considers itself

has an agency relationship with online game operators.

Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL")

Beijing TJYL has been owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao and Mr. Wei
Zhonghua, the directors, and Mr. Wei Chunming, the then
director, since its establishment. Under the prevailing laws and
regulations in the PRC, companies with foreign ownership are
prohibited from engaging in the internet information services
business in the PRC. In order to enable the Company to obtain
control over Beijing TJYL and its directly or indirectly owned
subsidiaries, Beijing Shenzhoufu Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing
Shenzhoufu”], Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. ("Beijing
Youxiping”), Beijing Shenzhoufu Network Technology
Development Limited ("Shenzhoufu Network”) [disposed on 30
September 2016, see note 35 for details), Wanlefu Technology
Limited ("Wanlefu Technology”) and Shijiazhuang Aigigi
Information Technology Co. Ltd. (“Aigigi Information”] (acquired
on 31
structured contracts (the “Structured Contracts”) were

December 2016, see note 34 for details)], certain

effectuated among Beijing TJYL, Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei
Zhonghua, Mr. Wei Chunming and Shenzhoufu (Beijing)
Software Technology Co., Ltd. ["Shenzhoufu Software”) (a 100%
indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company) on 22 June 2011,
pursuant to which Shenzhoufu Software undertakes to provide
Beijing TJYL with certain information consulting and technical
supporting services in return for fees which represent a
substantial amount of the profit generated by Beijing TJYL from
its operation of online transaction services in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MWK (&

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL") (continued)

To determine whether control exists over Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries, the Group has considered the following factors in
accordance with HKFRS 10 paragraph 7:

. The power over an investee to direct the relevant activities
that significantly affect the investee’s return was granted
to Shenzhoufu Software through the exclusive consulting
and services agreement, under which Shenzhoufu
Software is able to appoint directors, general manager
and senior management personnel of Beijing TJYL, and
thus is able to direct all major business decision of
Beijing TJYL. Further, Shenzhoufu Software is able to
cast the majority of votes at shareholder meetings. This
right was transferred to Shenzhoufu Software as stated in
the shareholder voting right entrustment agreement.

o Pursuant to the exclusive consulting and services
agreement, substantially all profits of Beijing TJYL were
transferred through consulting and technical supporting
services fees payable by Beijing TJYL to Shenzhoufu
Software, which expose the Group to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and the
shareholder voting right entrustment agreement gives
Shenzhoufu Software the rights of the original
shareholders including the rights to any dividend.
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RHE R FEIH M T AN AT X
HFREROEN BFEEM
B SRR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e MBwRME R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology

(f)

Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL") (continued)

J The Group has the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect the amount of its returns as it exercises
its power over Beijing TJYL on its own behalf and for its
own benefit. The Group has complete decision making
authority over Beijing TJYL and the Group’s decisions will
significantly affect the amount of its returns (i.e. the
amount of the profits of Beijing TJYL which it can obtain
through the consulting and technical supporting services
fees charged to Beijing TJYL).

As a result of the effects of the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL, Beijing Shenzhoufu, Beijing Youxiping, Shenzhoufu
Network (before its disposal in 2016}, Wanlefu Technology and
Aiqgigi Information (after its acquisition) are accounted for as

subsidiaries of the Company for accounting purposes.

Control over Joy Credit Online Limited (“Joy
Credit”)

The Group owns 48% equity interests in Joy Credit. For the
purpose of assessing whether or not the Group has control over
Joy Credit and its subsidiaries (collectively “Joy Credit Group”),
the directors considered whether the Group has the ability to
direct the relevant activities of Joy Credit Group. In making this
judgement, the directors considered that the relevant activities
of Joy Credit are directed by the board of directors and all
resolutions of directors” meeting are passed by simple majority.
Since the Group is entitled to appoint 2 out of 3 directors into
the board of directors of Joy Credit in accordance with
investment agreement, the Group dominants the board of
directors of Joy Credit and is able to direct the relevant activities
of Joy Credit Group. The directors of the Company were
therefore in the opinion that Group has control over Joy Credit
Group during the year and since 2015 despite its shareholding
therein was less than 50% and Joy Credit and its subsidiaries
were qualified as subsidiaries of the Company under HKFRS 10
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.
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5. FESHHERMAEFT @

(e)

(f)

HIEERRXREBERNERER
AEI(TEERREBE W
2= 5 7 (30

s AKENGERAEHIERES
MENDAZEERKRE RIA
RE RS TEEIERAH
BHAOBEINEHRSE - K
SEAFILLRRARBENE
BOREEE  MAKE R
EREAFZEINEDRN S
#(BNE BB A 4 R B
Yo B BE A R BT STIR IR B
AJ & BR A9 b K R B O R
TH#) e

HREBERONTE IERRHE
RBH - dE AR M AT - B RBEUR
N B4 (R2016F EEEAT)
MENMEERELTEE(RERK
BROJUEFENMERRESAR
AIRMHE AR -

¥} Joy Credit Online
Limited ([ Joy Credit]) #9
2 5 R

7N % B ¥ A Joy Credit B9 48% HE 25 °
RALAEERS HJoyCredit R E
M AR (5T Joy Credit £ @ ) %
BRGENS ESHEEAEER
=B BB 8 E Joy Credits B &9 48
RS MIER L HIERR EFR
7 Joy Credit B /BB EBN VR EF
CHHERFMAEESRAERYRE
HERNZHEFTAR ARBER
Bt AEEBREZE T Joy Credit
EFE-_REFROMEREL K
ANE B Y JoyCredittNEE G A AF
FTEE BBEENEE oy Crediti
EEREE Bt ARAIES
R BEREEFRFE Joy Crediti
Bz LR50%  BEAEBRE
A K 20154 #£ % Joy Credit £ B A
T BERBEEBTBRELL
1058 » Joy Credit X H B 2 AR
HZE2016F %2015 12 A31H I
EEERBARRRNWB AR -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(g) Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale
investments

The directors review unlisted available-for-sale investments at
the end of each reporting period to assess whether they are
impaired. The Group records impairment charges on unlisted
available-for-sale equity investments when there has objective
evidence that an impairment indicator exists. The determination
of whether the impairment indicator exists requires judgment.
In making this judgment, management of the Group takes into
account factors such as significant changes with an adverse
effect that has taken place in technological, market, economic
or legal environment in which the investees operate, and that
indicates that the cost of the investment in the equity

instrument may not be recovered.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
regularly review revenue and operating results derived from provision
of online transaction services, provision of information technology
services and provision of online advertising services and consider
such as one single operating segment.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’'s

operations are located in the PRC.

Information about major clients

There is no single customer contributed to 10% or more revenue to

the Group’s revenue for the year.

5.

FESHE R G @

(g) ?étﬁﬂﬁ%tﬂ%?ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂiﬁi

EENEMEHREMIFLTA
HEERENFHEAHURERSD
BE - WEEBEERRTFER
B AEBIF LT HEREER
BERGHERX REEEEFHE
BB R 5% B B Hh B o AR HETT A
BN AEEEBEZERERER
RERER RN - W5 KBEIE
RRELBANAFTINTZENS
REHERK BRIRATARE
BRI BE T & U o

7 BB

AEBTERLERRACDHEERARA]
WITEF - NTESEHNENREHEL
XM RERMRE RRHEELE

ERBAELENRARKEEEE  AH
ZRE—REDE -
AEBOMAZEBRPELE S E

2548 EH

FHEIEEFNEHR

RAFE HEE-FPERAEEI0%
A WA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

7.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, mainly represents the
service income from the provision of online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online
game users, and providing mobile top-up service to mobile
subscribers, provision of information technology services and
provision of online advertising services net of business tax. An
analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

7. WA Hl A R s

WATMAAREENEEE T ZERE
FREERACERESHES ERA
PHORZEMFHAFPREREFKEE
FERGREHRELZIRG  BHE
M7 BR 75 R 32 R 48 F R 25 AR 75 (AC I BR &
EB)HARBUWA - WA~ Haplg A R UL
mAOMMAN -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Revenue: WA
Provision of online transaction services RIEHE ER R 43,266
Provision of information technology services 42 it 547 BR %5 5,060
Provision of online advertising services RMHB EESRY 3
48,329
Other income and gains: Ht A R Was e

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HEAHLEESREEDN
financial assets (note 17(c)) Wezs (B EE17(c)) 178,015 —

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 35) & —E B2 R K Es
(B 5£35) 151 —
Government grants BT 4 B 38 312
Interest income MEKA 902 1,338
Exchange gain M H U 5 728 —

Deemed gain on disposal of BIELERHHE SR
available-for-sale financial assets & E R W e (BT EE34)

(note 34) =
Others H 1
179,983 1,651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE

8.

The Group’s profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

B Fft 15 %1 B8 < A i A

7 5 B B P15 50 B 32 A1 & A& B T 5

charging: FIHBEH -
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®F AREBTT
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - HWERKBTE
equipment 527
Written off of property, plant and equipment  #i$5 %1 % « = K & & 2
Amortisation of intangible assets T & B 292
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AEHESREERERREE
financial assets =
Impairment loss on prepayments T8 A FROR B & 18 301
Minimum lease payments under BFREHENRERS
operating leases for buildings 1,069
Development costs (note (a)) 5 B B2 (Fff 3 (a) 3,742
Employee benefit expenses REBAMAXZ
(including directors’ remuneration (note 9)) (B #E = = B (F15£9))
Wages and salaries TENE® 7,423
Pension scheme contributions RIKE 5T &I 1,166
Auditor’'s remuneration B 458
Note: & -

(a)

Development costs mainly comprise staff costs RMB5,122,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB3,308,000), which are also
included in the employee benefit expenses disclosed separately above.

The Group did not capitalise any development costs for the year ended

31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

(a) FEXNATERIFEE IAAEA  BHE20164F
12A318 IEFE A A R¥5,122,0007T (2015
F: AR#3,308,0007T) + MRt A £ SC{E B
BENEERMFAIAN - BHE2016F12A8
1HIEFE - AN % B4 AT (] 5 3R A
BEFREAR (20154 : ) -

HNBFHERMARDE —F-—RFFER

105



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. ESHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM RIFEAIEWR EmRBEEEQFIEH
Listing Rules and Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies (5622F)FE383MENR R A (FBHEESFZF
Ordinance, (Cap. 622) and the Companies (Disclosure of Information ERDMBI(F62206E)FTEE  EFRNN
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation (Cap. 622G] is as follows: FEMHMAOT :
Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefit scheme
Fee inkinds* contributions Total
e 2HR ERY N
we B F &> K st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARBETTT ARBTT ARBTTT

Year ended BZE2016%F
31 December 2016 12ANBLEEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao RLREESE
Mr. Tang Bin B 5t A
Non-executive directors ~ FEHTTEFE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua B LA
Mr. Lan Xi M7 ST
Mr. Li Jianguang TRIEE
Independent non-executive % IEHTTEFE
directors
Mr. Hou Dong BER LA
Mr. He Qinghua o] B 2E S A
Mr. Yang Haoran BN L E
Year ended B E20155F
31 December 2015 12ANBLEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao LR EE — 254 32 286
Mr. Tang Bin B 5t A = 255 32 287
Non-executive directors ~ FE#H7TEH
Mr. Wei Zhonghua RpELEE = = — -
Mr. Zhang Zhen (note (b)) 3R 7B 5t 4 (BT &% (b)) = - - -
Mr. Lan Xi (note (a)) 37 5 A (B E(a) — = — —
Mr. Li Jianguang (note (a)) 2= 2 ¢ 5& & (K & (a)) = = - -
Ms. Guo Jia [note (b)) 20 2= 2z =+ (Bt 5 (b)) = — — -
Independent non-executive & I TTE E
directors
Mr. Yang Guang (note (b)) #5 ¢ 58 4 (P 7% (b)) — — = =
Mr. Hou Dong EREE 48 - — 48
Mr. He Qinghua fa] B 2 5t 4 48 — — 48
Mr. Yang Haoran (note (a)) 154 %A 5 & (I 5F (a) 54 — — 54
150 509 64 723
Notes: Bt 5E
(a)  Appointed on 9 April 2015 la)  R2015F4AIRKERE
(b)  Resigned on 9 April 2015 (b)  W2015F4 B9 BB
* These are in connection with the management of the affairs of the * HEAANRRENBAG Y EBEKAE -

Company and its subsidiaries.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

10

11

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2016
(2015: nil).

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

During the year ended 31 December 2016, none (2015: two) of the five
highest paid employees were directors of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining five (2015: three) highest paid
employees of the Group are as follows:

9.

10.

EEH N

REE216F12A831BILFEER - &
BEERELRERETAHFMNOZH
(20154 : #&) -

hIEBESHES

REE2016F12A3BIEFE A& &
SHEEFHMEAS(2015F : WAB) A
RARES - REBHEBA A (20155 ¢
—ER)BRRFEEMNTINFBET

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARBTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EHEEDAE
Pension scheme contributions BRIRE FT B K

823
74

897

The remuneration of all the five highest paid employees fell within the
band of nil to Hong Kong Dollar ("HK$") 1,000,000 for each of the

reporting periods.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None (2015: none) of the persons,
who were directors, waived or agreed to waive any emoluments

during the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated at the
applicable tax rates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
enterprise income tax rate of all the PRC subsidiaries, except for
Shenzhoufu Software (see note (a) below] and Beijing Shenzhoufu (see
note (b] below), was 25% on their taxable profits for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

11.

T

MEHE AEEoFEENFN
=% 7T 21,000,000 T ([E T 1) 1

&= %
M —H IR

o

RECE20165F R2015F12A31H EFE
HE AEERERNEETREMNRER
BHEEXNME  (FAMAXEKER
HMAZ R REIBERME - NAF
B HEQNSF - EB)GR/REEMAR
MELRERETAHE

FrE BB

o B R B A R IR D IR R AR B IR AR
Ul - REREOAEERERHRKRHE -

R BE AR ERERER BE2016F
2015 12A3VHILFEE - Fr B B
B AR (B 481 N S B (B SRt 5
(a)) R b 2 48 0 A5 (R T STH aE (b)) B R
BEC¥MEBHBEOBREREFR RN
25%5F & ©

HNBFHERMARDE —F-—RFFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) M. FrBHHEZXw®

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction of the
Cayman Islands during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: nil).

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income represents:

REBMPRE E2016F12A318 It FE
DESGMFAESHS R ARRETMKRE
(20154 : &) - BN A& B R E E=2016
FRANBLEFEIECESELEAM
FERBAEN W EEREBNEHE
&5 (20154 « #&) -

EHEEE2mRERANINRESHAX
Gk e

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARETT

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax B EARR I8 — B (b ZE PR 1S B

— tax for the year — FRHIE 4,525
Deferred tax [note 26) IR FE R 18 (M 5E26) 2,507
Income tax expense FT B F X 7,032
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

1. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the Group’s
profit before income tax expense per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

TEBE X @

AEBRAFERMEHFRX R

S
T U 55 5% 19 O Bk P AS A5 7 S B s A 3 B

m -

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBTT
Profit before income tax expense BR P15 %% 78 =2 Al 4 176,726 25,304
Tax on profit before income tax expense, BR BT 15 Bt 7 % Al A1 89 B 18 -
calculated at 25% (2015: 25%) 1225% 5 & (20154 : 25%) 44,181 6,326
Effect of different tax rates in HEMalEER AR ENZE
other jurisdictions (5) 492
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A BRAZOHE TR 1,044 42
Tax losses not recognised REERT T E 18 1,179 652
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBPRANT KL (40,104) —
Income tax on concession rates REBTEGTENMEH
(note (a) & (b)) (Bt 3E (a) K (b)) (1,777) (2,987)
Withholding tax arising on undistributed Bt B8 2 B AR 9 R s I 2E AR Y
profits in a subsidiary (note (c)) TE A (it 7% () 1,106 2,507
Capital gain tax (note (d)) B AW 2= B (P =E(d)) 16,475 —
Income tax expense Fr8 & 22,099 7,032
Notes: M5t
(a)  Shenzhoufu Software successfully obtained the “National High (@) 48N B R 20145 10 A 30 B AL I BB

(b)

(c)

Technology Enterprise” status as at 30 October 2014, and this
qualification is valid for 3 years starting from 2014 and the applicable
PRC enterprise income tax rate was 15% for the year ended 31
December 2016 (2015: 15%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Beijing
Shenzhoufu qualified as “Software Enterprise” and is entitled to
exemption from the PRC enterprise income tax for two years
commencing from its first profit-making year of operation, following by
a 50% reduction in the applicable tax rate for the next three years.
Beijing Shenzhoufu did not enjoy preferential tax rate for the year ended
31 December 2016 and the applicable PRC enterprise income tax rate
was 25% (2015: 12.5%).

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Accordingly,
Shenzhoufu Software, being a wholly foreign-owned enterprise
established in the PRC, is liable to a 10% withholding tax on its
undistributed profit as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations.

(b)

(c]

[ER=MEMCEITESR  E8F8HEA
WLFRBE=F B ZE2016F12A31H
IEFE HERAOTECEMSHREA
15% (20154 = 15%) °

BIEPREABEEEIRE ERGNEFE
BiEBIBRMHLE] AHEEENEESF
ERIAREFAIEREEATECERS
BoWRHEBZFAEEBRREE -
FMMREE2016F12831BIEFEL

fEFEEMEKARERZPEACERS
TR A25% (20154F £ 12.5%) °

RiFPEAREERESR  RPBEKZD
SVE R ERINERE E IR R B BB
10%FENHL o i o0 B 62 50 B 4% & & AT £ )
FERERBAARBGG  ARENTEOMRE
FIREE A o B - AN A (B R R
PERZNIHBEDLE)BARRETH

& 5T A8 B A& I T 8 E 9 oK 0 R v A 854
10% T8I0 FL
HMNBFHERMBERAT —ZE—"EFHR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(d) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a transfer of a
foreign company that holds the equity interest in an underlying China tax
resident enterprise is subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax. The
applicable tax rate was 10%.

12. DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed or paid during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average of 480,000,000 ordinary shares (2015: 480,000,000) of the
Company.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential

ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
nil.
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B & : ()

d  REFRAEEERER SRS EHHE
MEGEERMEEDNINE QA RAMA
PEMEMRSH - BRARERI0% -

12. IR B

REE20165 R 20155 12A31B IEFE
W4 2 SUR T AR S -

13.8REF

BRERBINDERRNARESE AENL
F [ % F X 0 #E F 59 $480,000,000 f%
A% (20154 : 480,000,000 %) 5+ & -

HE216F12A831H IEFE W EE
LEBRET MU R2NSREETRF
(20154 « 4&) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. % BERZE

31 December 2016

2016F12A31H

Cost: AN
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818
Additions NE
Acquired through business FEREBAHIE
combination (note 34) (P 5£34)
Disposed through disposal FREEWE AR
of subsidiary (note 35) ifi 4 (M 5E35)

At 31 December 2016

2016512 B31H

Accumulated depreciation: REtirE
At 1 January 2016 201651 H18
Charge for the year FRHBK
Eliminated on disposals i & B ¥ 85

At 31 December 2016

2016512 A31H

Net book value:
At 31 December 2016

BRMEFE
2016512 8318

31 December 2015

2015128310

Office Computer Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
WAERE ElRE RE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®EFTT ARBTR AR®ETZR

Cost: B A
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1 818 260 2,386 917 3,563
Additions ANE - 553 276 829
Written-off i — (44) — (44)
At 31 December 2015 R2015F 12 A31 H 260 2,895 1,193 4,348
Accumulated depreciation: 2EIE -
At 1 January 2015 R20154 1818 234 1,353 437 2,024
Charge for the year F R0k 8 377 142 527
Written back on written-off 5 2 B — (42) - (42)
At 31 December 2015 2015412 8318 242 1,688 579 2,509
Net book value: BREF(E -
At 31 December 2015 20154128318 18 1,207 614 1,839
BMEFHEFMERLIT —ET—REER
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. BFLEE
Computer
software
E - E2Ees
RMB'000
AR T T
31 December 2016 2016%F12H31H
Cost: B
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 818 4,559
Acquired through business combination (note 34) BB ETE O (M 5E34) 2,074
Additions NE 194
Disposed through disposal of subsidiary (note 35) 7 A S KB A Al i S (M 5E35) (1,470)
At 31 December 2016 20164128318 5,357
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHIE
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1H
Charge for the year F AR
Eliminated on disposals o & B 8 8K
At 31 December 2016 M2016%12A318
Net book value: 8 TH H A
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12 H31H
31 December 2015 2015%12H31H
Cost: B
At 1 January 2015 R®2015%F1 418 3,940
Additions (note (a)) WE (FitaEla)) 619
At 31 December 2015 RK2015% 12 A31H 4,559
Accumulated depreciation: 2 E
At 1 January 2015 R2015F1 418 2,136
Charge for the year F A B 292
At 31 December 2015 20154128318 2428
Net book value: B TH F (A
At 31 December 2015 7K 20159F 12 A31H 2,131
Note: Wi 5E -
(a]  The additions of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 @) HE2015F12ANBILFEEN BEE
included intangible assets of RMB334,000 from non-controlling interests BB ER BTSN BHE A R A B3R R
of Wanlefu Technology. B B2 & E A RW334,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The particulars of the Company’'s subsidiaries as at 31 December

2016 are as follows:

Place and date

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

16. RIfTB R BIIRE

R2016F12A31B AR AIK B AR 25

BT

Attributable equity
interests held by

Place of operation and

Name of incorporation registered capital the Company principal activities
=L AR 3L 4 36 BERTRAZRE AR
518 RBH HEMER PSR A S REWUHRTEER
Direct  Indirect
HE i
Shen Zhou Xing Limited Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding in
("Shen Zhou Xing”) 19 May 2008 HK$1 for 1 ordinary Hong Kong
share
AT R A A BB B BT RARERA REBREER
(M8 77 1) 2008454198 TR 178 7T B AR
Shenzhoufu Software' PRC, Registered capital of — 100% Provision of consulting
3 July 2008 RMBB80,906,740 and technical supporting
services to group companies
in the PRC
AT A - M ERARK IR SE NI E/
200847 A3H 80,906,740 7T A+ BBl sz R BR 7%
Beijing TJYL? PRC, Registered capital of — 100% Provision of online transaction
| July 2005 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
1E R M 75 B2 - A E AR AR R BEHRHA E R 5 KRB
200547 A 18 10,000,0007T
Beijing Shenzhoufu® PRC, Registered capital of — 100% Provision of online transaction
25 May 2011 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
1E A A2 - AMERARK R BER A LR 5 R
201145 R 25H 10,000,0007T
Beijing Youxiping® PRC, Registered capital of = 100% Profit sharing with online game
2 August 2012 RMB 10,000,000 operators and provision of
online advertising services
in the PRC
16 FE B - A E AR AR D16 48 L 05 BE s A K
201248 A 2R 10,000,000 7T FERBEIRHAE EESRE
Prajna Technology Limited  British Virgin Islands  Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding
(“Prajna Technology”) ("BVI", United States Dollar
30 April 2015 ("US$") 1 ordinary share
PrajnaTechnology Limited HEEE XS BT RAR KA & R
([Prajna Technology ) (EEEzHs]) 1F=xd(Erx)) EEk
201544 H30H
Joy Credit®’ Cayman Islands, Issued and fully paid — 48.52% Investment holding
3 February 2015 US$9,460 ordinary
shares
Joy Credit®” REHS - B BT RAR KRR REER
201542 A3H 9,4603% 7T % i AR
Lexiang Online Net Limited“’Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid = 48.52% Investment holding

SETERBH/AR DAY

16 February 2015
BE
20152 A 168

HK$1 ordinary share
BEIT R R KA
18T EBR

BMMBFHERMERDA

RE R

ZE-REER
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continuea)  16. TAKT B 2 T HY 1% 8 )

Place and date

Issued and fully
paid share capital/

Attributable equity
interests held by

Place of operation and

Name of incorporation registered capital the Company principal activities
E AR 3L 4tk Bh BRTRMZRE QR
=L kEH HEMER s R A ER REBBRTEXH
Direct  Indirect
HE CF:3
Wanlefu Software PRC, Issued and fully paid — 48.52% Investment holding
Technology Limited®’ 11 September 2015 US$1,950,000 ordinary
shares
0 SR SCEEE5 - BEITRARBKA BREER
BRARY 201569 A 118 1,950,000 5% 7T % 38 A%
Wanlefu Technology®® PRC, Registered capital of = 63.10% Provision of promotion and
25 November 2014 RMB1,350,000 distribution services of
online game products for
online game operators
0t KRR S - & A RELEREEHIRMAER
2014511 A25H AR #1,350,0007C BEREMNERRDH
BR %
Aigigi Information®® PRC, Registered capital of — 100% Provision of information
2 June 2015 RMB1,000,000 technology consultancy
services, application and
development services
BoEER>’ R R & AR RS BRI AR
201566 H2H A R #1,000,0007T e R K i 3 AR 75
Tiancoin Inc. British Virgin Islands  Issued and fully paid US$1 100% — Investment holding
("BVI"), 14 May 2014 ordinary share
Tiancoin Inc. HEBERES BEETRHBRKRAIZETT REZER
(RBRZHEE]) ETBEK
2014458148
Shenzhou Net Technology ~ Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid HK$1 — 100% Investment holding
Limited 3June 2016 ordinary share
Shenzhou Net Technology &/ * EBRTRARKE 1B T REZER
Limited 201656 A3H E IR
Notes: B
1. Shenzhoufu Software, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Shen Zhou 1. MR EREMNITNEEZENBE A
Xing, is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the laws A REBEREEEEIMAINEBERLHE -
of the PRC.
2. Interests existed by virtue of certain contractual arrangements as 2. MRS T E TANLRHHES -

described in note 5(e).

3. Joy Credit is a 48.52% directly owned subsidiary of Pranja Technology. 3.

4. Lexiang Online Net Limited is a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Joy 4.
Credit.

S. Wanlefu Software Technology Limited, a 100% directly owned subsidiary 5.

of Lexiang Online Net Limited, is registered as limited company under

the laws of the PRC.
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16. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

(Continued)

Wanlefu Technology, a 63.10% (2015: 51%) directly owned subsidiary of
Beijing TJYL, is registered as limited company under the laws of the
PRC.

The directors are of the opinion that, notwithstanding holding less than
half of the voting rights of these companies, having considered in
substance all facts and circumstances the Group has control over these
companies. See note 5(f) for further details.

On 31 December 2016, Aigigi Information was acquired by Beijing TJYL,
and became wholly owned subsidiary of Beijing TJYL. See note 34 for
further details.

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

16. RIB AR E @

B & - ()

U4 RHRE B 3 R R RS B 5 63.10%
(015F :51%) BEWEEZEKHBE AR R
BRERREMRLABRAG -

BERZELRAFHLIRYHNRER
EERIEEBMASERBRLR &F
RRAEBMBERZE AT RS - —
HREE R ES() o

R2016F 128310 BEoFEEHILRX
BREWE KA RRAUBHOEEN
BRA - E—FBERM 3L

17. A HHEEESREE

Unlisted equity securities, at cost
(notes (a) and (b))

Listed equity security, at fair value
(note (c])

FLTRAES  WEAK
(Pt 7 (a) K (b))

EAEAES  BRAFE
(B &£ (c))

Less: Provision of impairment loss & : J&l {8 /&5 18 # {5

Notes:

(a)

The amount represents investment in 10 (2015: 5] private companies in
the PRC, which are engaged in Bitcoin trading and information, social
communication, renovation service platform, IT system development,
peer-to-peer lending service platform, online media platform and
investment holding business in the PRC. The unlisted available-for-sale
equity securities are measured at cost less impairment at each
reporting date because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
so significant. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that fair value cannot be reliably measured. The directors of the
Company have no intention to dispose of the available-for-sale financial
assets at the end of reporting period.

BN FHERMARDF

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
30,280 20,910
144,006 =
174,286 20,910
(100) =
174,186 20,910

FZe AN P05  AM)LE
REZEE AEARETHELELS
BRXHURELS HLEBHA  BIFREF
A TESFEE PPEERB TE @
HRERBTAORREERER - JF L A4
HEBRAZESFNE RS B HRKARRE
e TARATEARGHGERER
ReRl ARBEER/ERFETH
AEAE - RBEHR ARAEFHER
HEATHRLESREE -

TE-REFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

(c)

As at 31
investments included 25.9% equity interests in Leyu Limited ("Leyu”)

December 2015, the Group's strategic unlisted equity

and 20% equity interests in Aiqgigi Information. These companies are not
accounted for using equity method as the Group did not have significant
influence over these companies, evidenced by the lack of any direct or
indirect involvement at board level, and were accounted for as available-
for-sale financial assets. During the period from 1 January 2016 to 31
October 2016, the Group’s equity interest in Leyu is diluted from 25.9%
to 21.62% since Leyu has introduced new investors. As at 31 December
2016, as a result of disposal of available-for-sale financial assets as
further described in notes 17(c] and 34, the Group held less than 20%
equity interests in any available-for-sale financial assets.

On 31 October 2016, Prajna Technology, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, together with Starshine Global Investment Limited,
Sanbao Star Limited, Mr. Zhang Jinghua and Mr. Wang Lisong, which
are other existing shareholders of Leyu (collectively referred to as the
“Sellers”] entered into a sale and purchase agreement ["Agreement”)
with Credit China FinTech Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, ("Credit China”) and Marvel Paradise Group
Limited ("Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Credit China.
Pursuant to the Agreement, the Sellers conditionally agreed to sell and
the Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase 48% of the entire issued
share capital of Leyu and its subsidiaries (together the “Leyu Group”).

In accordance with the Agreement, the Group disposed of approximately
11.62% of the entire issued share capital of Leyu Group at total
consideration of approximately RMB193,681,000, of which 40% is settled
by cash including approximately RMB28,407,000 and US$7,231,000, and
the remaining consideration are settled by issuing of 172,896,102 shares
[the "Consideration Shares”) of Credit China, at an issue price of
HK$0.7681 per share. For details of the transactions, please refer to the
respective announcements of the Company dated 31 October 2016 and
21 November 2016 and the circular of the Company dated 24 November
2076.

As at 14 December 2016, being the completion date, the fair value of the
Consideration Shares was approximately RMB109,290,000 at market
quoted price of HK$0.71 per share, and the fair value of total
consideration was approximately RMB187,856,000. Upon the completion
of the transactions, the Group will effectively held 10% equity interests
in Leyu Group, and 0.80% of the enlarged issued share capital of Credit
China, and the Group recognised a gain of disposal of available-for-sale
financial asset of approximately RMB178,015,000 in profit or loss.
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17. A HHESRE E @

W i -

(b)

(c)

(#)

R2015F12A318  AEERREMEIEE
MR E A B Leyu Limited ([Leyu ) #9
259% @ EBFEE LTS B20%E % -
AAEEHEEESRZ TMERZEEEK
FHELE ALEZSEARTESAEE
N MEZEARREREREAER A
IRFIERTHEESRMEE - N2016F1 A1
BZE2016F 10831 B M B R Leyusd| A
FIEE NEERLeyu M 3 B25.9%
HSEE21.62%° 20165128318 @R
HEAHEESREE (WM 1700 R34
) AEERIRNAHEES
BREERIFE20% A T A ©

R2016F 10831 H  ARRNEEWRELR
&]Prajna Technology & [Fl Leyu By H ftb 38 &
% 3 Starshine Global Investment Limited *
Sanbao Star Limited * SR & 2E 55 4 & £ A
LEFBIER])BREEERRERSE
RN E(THBEE] (— B A PrAl %
WRETHRARRPEAEENZERNBE A
&) Marvel Paradise Group Limited ([ & 75 1)
AIVEEHA(BED REZHBE &
THREBEHRABEE MEHAKEREE
EleyW R EMBRA (B LeyuE @] 2
WEBITRARL8%IES -

BEZHE AEE L EleyuE B2 I
EETRANOI.62%  BREHAA
K #193,681,0007T © & F40% A B & &
H- g9 B8FEH AR 2407000T &
7,231,000 A TREHBETHBEEE
#9172,896,102& BR i (R B & 19 1) (B &
BITERITSI BT BE - BAR S 25
B BLHEARABES R A2016%10A4
3R KX2016F1MA2NBZ REARART
HEIA2016F11 H24 8 2 @K ©

B2016F 128148 (AT B) - RERKRHD
B R FELH B ARE109,2090007T @ 8%
MHHRECIB T BREQAFENAA
R #187,856,000C - MR 5 K%+ NE
EEEREFE Ly EE10%MERE - kP
E{ZBEEEABBEITRANSN%  BEA
SERERERRALETHLESRE
EWZEH AR 178,015,0007C ©
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18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 18. %%@W%ﬂlﬁ&@%
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Trade and bills receivables from: BT A LR E 5 eI T8

N g R

— Third parties — == 8,685 3,360
The Group normally does not grant credit period to its customers. For REB-—REATE NG TERPEE
a minor portion of customers who are granted credit period, the credit H-p=EEEHNLBEPME &
period is generally 90 days. The Group seeks to apply strict control EH— MR AR o AR KB BB
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. All the trade i oK B e W R T A R B ORE E & A
and bills receivables are non-interest bearing. -FEBESREFREREREEAR

BE o
The aging analysis of trade and bills receivables (net of impairment ES5RKRAEREREBRENRSH
losses) based on transaction date are as follows: (BB EBR) WERE T -

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T AR T T

0 to 3 months 0Z31& A 3,109

3 to 6 months 3ZE6MEA 194

6 months to 1 year 6EAZE14F 56

1to 2 years 1225 1

3,360

The analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables that were past RERSHR AEESHE®KRBE
due but not impaired as at the end of each of the reporting periods is WESHREIURIBERERZEEN S TW
as follows: L
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Neither past due nor impaired (note (a)) A HR R ARORUE (M 5E(a) 3,359
Within 12 months past due (note (b)) B H DR 1218 A (5% (b)) =
More than 12 months past due (note (b)) B HRER A 1218 A (M 5 (b)) 1
3,360
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A3181LFE

18. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The balances that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment

based on the accounting policy stated in note 4(g](ii.

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

1&%5@%%@&@%

B2

BeE

(a)

(b)

(&)

R 380 H3 B R R (B Y 4 R B A P MR R AR
HOREEF AR -

EE HVE R RE R B R B AR E
RERFBELBENABBLE, AR -
REBELR EFRRARFEEERY
BEAEDRARDERAT 2EKM -
HBARZEEREHRERG A& E
4 5 5% 55 8 R A A (AT R 9 R S EL A A
EEE -

A& B AR B M R A(9) ) P 1) B & AT KR
@ B AR BERE R -

11%@%~E$&E@@

=+
RECEIVABLES g
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT
Prepayments (note (a)) AR (M RE(a) 59,312
Advances to an investment classified as DEAFHEESREER

available-for-sale financial asset and its ERRWB AR ZIEE AR
fellow subsidiaries (note (b)) (Bt 3£ (b)) 4,820
Other receivables (note (c]) H ft & Wk IE (it 5 () 4,749
Deposits B¢ 3
68,884

Notes: M sE -

(a)  The Group's prepayments were prepayments to online game operators a) AEENENRAABLEBRELEER
and distributors of telecommunication companies in amount of BERARDHBEENMRIE - R20165F12
RMB58,354,000 as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB59,135,000). A31H &8 % % = A K #58354,0007T (2015

F: AR#59,1350007T) °
(b)  The advances are unsecured, interest-free and repayble on demand. b) ZBRRAER LERREREE-
(c)  Included in the Group's other receivables were required guarantee [ AEBEOEMEYRFESEBENELE

funds deposited to online game operators in amount of RMB2,035,000
as at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB2,035,000). Under cooperation
agreements with the online game operators, the Group is required to
make guarantee funds of a pre-agreed amount to the online game
operators upon entering into the relevant cooperation agreements.
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BELHINNRES  RN2016F12 831
HH 4% A ARM20350007T (20154 : A
R #2,035,0007T) - ARIFHAE FREEUE R T
RAINMAIEHE  ANEEARTLEBE
EHERRA L ESELEEL —$£8%
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT

Pre-paid mobile top-up credits ANFHRFEEREDHE 54,549
Online game products M R E @ 260
54,809
3 = =%
21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM RELATED 21. BB E A R FIE
COMPANIES
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBTT
Beijing Guotongbao Holding Co., Ltd. I RBEE KRG AR A F
(“Beijing GTB") (MHERBEE D 1,411
Beijing Qiandaibao Payment Technology Ltd. dtREERE X M HE T B R A R
(“Beijing QDB") (9% 33 4)) 1,531
2,942
The related companies are either controlled by the directors or HEANAXEERGHAREARAESSE
significant influenced by the directors of the Company, and the AEE MZEEARRIEIULEE &
balances are non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and K RELEESREE-
repayable on demand.
Maximum amounts due from the related parties are as follows: FEWEBEA TR HERT
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Beijing GTB I RERE 1,411
Beijing QDB ERERE 2,562
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. MAFEFABEENS
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS B E

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Investment in Bitcoin, at fair value RRFERE RS 986
The fair value of the Group's investment in Bitcoin is based on quoted AEEBLFERENATFTEDERTS
market price. WREET -
23. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3. RERBESEEY
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETT

Cash and bank balances e RIBITER 164,808 45,499

The cash and cash equivalents of RMB102,702,000 was denominated R2016F12A831H - Bea KBS EY
in RMB at 31 December 2016 (2015: RMB33,290,000). RMB is not a A5 AR 102,702,000 7T (20154 © A R ¥
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC 33,290,0007T) - MARBEE AR
is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC Government. ATAERRBEY HEEcERF
B 78 & B o B BUT B 00 Y B KPR T 69 AR
fR -
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITHR S DREEG ARITERIENZF
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy BERBEF B o $R1T4 8 917 B 3 B
banks with no recent history of default. WHEXNGCSEERTRITHFR
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24. TRADE PAYABLES 24. E S ENRIE
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Trade payables to B TIATHE S - FRE -

— Third parties —%£=5 45,760
Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally BORNREREE - AEE —BER
granted credit terms ranging from 1-30 days. WEESHNT1E0X-

The aging analysis of trade payables based on transaction date are as BORNFEENRZSBHEREY TN
follows: D
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BF ARET T
0 to 3 months 0Z31E A 43,515
3 to 6 months 3E6EA 16
6 months to 1 year 6EAZE1F 47
Over 1 year 1A E 2,182
45,760
=+, a
25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 25. Hitb B RERETEH
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BF AREF T
Receipts in advance T8 U BR 3K 9,674
Other payables and accruals HEmENREREFER 2,818
Other tax payables H A &~ B I8 1,347
13,839
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26. DEFERRED TAX 26. iE i F 18

MRAFERBEFECHERIELERER

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements

during the current and prior year: BEREEHFIE
Deferred tax liabilities EEMEERE
Undistributed Revaluation of
earnings of PRC intangible
subsidiary assets Total
REIME AR BREEN
B R 2 Ik 2 F B #wat
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2015 201541 418 4,366 — 4,366
Charged to profit or loss BEa kR 2,507 = 2,507
At 31 December 2015 and R2015F 12 A31H &

1 January 2016 20161 A1H 6,873 — 6,873
Charged to profit or loss BB &% 1,106 - 1,106
Acquisition through business FERED S O

combination (note 34) (MF7E34) — 519 519
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 7,979 519 8,498

M2016F12A31H  AEERNKE B
EEE B AR 79200007 (20154 © A
R#3,975,0007T) - R AFAEIE - A
REEREBTETK MITERAXDH
MEBIEERAEEHBEE -

At 31 December 2016, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB7,920,000 (2015: RMB3,975,000] which would expire in five years’
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses as the directors considered that the impact is
minimal.

R B 50 45 6518 0

Expiry years of unrecognised tax losses:

2016 2015

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥TR ARETT

2018 20184 107
2019 2019 € 1,260
2020 20204 2,608
2021 20214 =
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. IR 2

Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRA
2016 2015
Number RMB’000 Number RMB'000
#H AR TR # A AR¥ETT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of F1%0.001 £ T
US$0.001 each Rl 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 6,148
Issued and fully paid ERTRHARE
Ordinary shares of F%0.001E T
US$0.001 each =gl
At beginning and end of R FH K F R
the year 480,000,000 480,000,000 2,941

Capital management policy

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it
in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

Management regards total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2016
amounted to approximately RMB310,420,000 (2015: RMB119,638,000)
which management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the strategic opportunities.

EXEERX
FEEERAANEIEARARES
EEEBEQE TRFBENERL
BOURBHES -

AEBEEEEAREREELEMR
MEPELHE - BEFIFABELAR
B ARBAREARROREIRM
FABRROERRELBETHR RAF
B AEBEUTEHEREANBR K
RERFELHER -

EREERARABEEABGBESZRE
Ko R2016F12A318 BERAESBELH A
A R #310,420,0007T (2015F : A R ¥
119,638,0007T) - B IR [E L Z EFEM & K
Y REEEER RAEBREKTE-

HNBFHERMARDE —F-—RFFER
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28. RESERVES 28. &
Details of the movements on the Group's reserves are set out in the REENRFEZDFEIANRAREE
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Movements on the R - ARNAINHBELHHINNAT

Company’s reserves are set out below:

Share Accumulated
Company FNNE| Premium losses Total
R 17 % 8 AitEi8 wiE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARBTT
(note (a)) (note (e))
(ff 5% (@) (Bt E(e))
At 1 January 2015 M2015F1 818 47,899 (13,973) 33,926

Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE R 2 EH K =L

income for the year (2,000) (2,000)
At 31 December 2015 and M2015F 12 A31H
1 January 2016 K& 2016F1H18 (15,973)

Loss and total comprehensive — FRNEE k2 W= 27

income for the year (3,400) (3,400)
As 31 December 2016 M2016F 12 431 H (19,373) 28,526
(a) Share premium (a) BB =E
Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, R EEERAERASEBLEEE
less of share issuing costs. ZRIE - WHIBR AR AT -
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28. RESERVES i(continued

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Capital reserve

The reserve is arising from the capital contribution from equity
holders resulted from the Reorganisation and also from the
deemed contribution from equity holders in connection with the
tax losses incurred by the related parties in prior years.

The deemed capital contribution from equity holders represents
the savings of income tax payable to tax authority for the
Group's business operated by the related parties that should
otherwise be incurred should the related parties be not in a tax
loss position, and the Group records this tax savings as capital
contribution from the equity holders and the equivalent amount
as income tax expense for the period.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant requlations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses), as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve shall be made before
distribution of dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve
fund can be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any.

Investment revaluation reserve

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses arising
on recognising financial assets classified as available-for-sale
at fair value.

Retained earnings/accumulated losses

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses

recognised in profit or loss.

28. {18 )

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BN FHERMARDF

N
BEDREASHERRAALE
DRRAEREREARBEALR
B 1E R A A VBTSSR
B

BEREFAANITERMBEA
p 0N S VY RN Y
BN EHES  MEAEALLE
MIEER AehBmEREE
A 52 B o 5B Ut B IR E AR
REGSHAEANTIELREZREBEA
RHAMBHAX -

ETE i R
BRPBEABERRE  ARBRN
FERIMEENOHEBERAREAER
BB AR RAR KRR R
wA (REEBEFERBE)10%E
BEAEWHE BEEMRBERELM
BAR50% B 1E - St BB A
RAEEFTEAD KR ESAEL °
EEREBES I RFEERERAESF
REEBEBRMA) -

REEfhfHfE
ZREERREAFESEAT
it & BA B A A ) R A 3
REEEHE -
REBRREER

ZEBEENBEEANRTFR
a3 MR

ZE-REER
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29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 29. &N B B IR R &

Wei Zhonghua
Bz

Director

)

On behalf of the Board
REEEE
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Sun Jiangtao
Director

EF

OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 3E ARE T AR T T
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KU B R A& E =
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TE A F E 8 WS kIR 86
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE L B /B R B FRIA 49,923
Cash and cash equivalents RekBeEEY 189
Total current assets mEBEEMLT 50,198
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAS BT /B A R 5K IA 14,791
Other payables and accruals H fth fE 5 5/ R IEEH B A 540
Total current liabilities mEBBEARE 15,331
Net current assets mEBEETFRE 34,867
NET ASSETS EEEH 34,867
Equity =
Issued capital BBITRA 27 2,941
Reserves EE 28 31,926
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 34,867
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had the

following material related party transactions:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Related party transactions

NFEENHEE XN

Rental charges paid to directors

0.EEATRSF
BrARREE ML TRAEEEIN NEH
BHETUTERBEEALRS
(a) BEALRS
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AREFIT
633

The transactions are charged at a pre-determined rate mutually
agreed by the parties.

Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors is as
follows:

(b)

RHREE R

Short-term employee benefits

The remuneration of the Group's key management personnel
fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, Beijing QDB provided
the usage of electronic payment platform to the Group without
any charges. The gross transaction amounts via the internet
payment platform for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
RMB505,442,000 (2015: RMB38,855,000).

(c)

BN FHERMARDF

RpDETNTHEBENFAL
BEBEXRKE-

FTEEEAEEHMH

FEBENTREBASHH(BE
EXNTPARAREENSTIMAT

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT
861

REE2016F & 2015912 A31H It
FE AEETEZEEEAENTH
18 E T FZ 78 7T = 1,000,000 7T °

HE2016F128318 it F & b
RREJKEHRASELEFASE
TFE A B E2016F12A318
IHFE BBEHMBNRTEED
RS HREE A A RE505442,0007T
(20154 : AR #38,8550007T) °

ZE-REER
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QL Foes
31. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS N. EEHE A
The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The AEERBKEHNDEEE TWE-Z
leases for properties usually run for an initial period of three months EMEBRABTNTRB=ZEAAEM
to two year. F o
At the end of each of the reporting period, the total future minimum REBRS BB R AEEBE A BE
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payables RETHAOENO AR FERERBHAZE
as follows: R
2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBTTT

Within one year —FRQ 1,070
One year to two years —EWF 571
1,641
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. BREHEAITHNEMITAE

CATEGORY
The carrying amounts and fair value of each of the categories of REREHARNSEZRENE SN TR
financial instruments as at the end of each of the reporting periods TEMNEBRELEAFEDT :
are as follows:
2016 2015
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
REE ATE REE NEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARETT ARETT
Financial assets CREE
Available-for-sale financial assets: ] (1] & &9 % gt & ZE
— Unlisted equity securities — 3 ETRAE 30,180  N/A g+ 20910  N/A @A™
— Listed equity securities — EWIRAE 144,006 144,006 = =
Fair value through profit or BBRmEATE
loss — held for trading: —RHEEE -
— Bitcoin at quoted market —EEmISRE 986 986
Loans and receivables: B R W R
— Trade and bills receivables -85 ngﬁlm&
JE W 3,360 3,360
— Financial assets included in —FABRMR Eek
prepayments, deposits and H & R IE A Y
other receivables ERMEE 72,481 72,481 68,798 68,798
— Amounts due from related — W E A RIRIA
companies 484 484 2,942 2,942
— Cash and cash equivalents —ReREEEFEY 164,808 164,808 45,499 45,499
423,023 392,843 142,495 121,585
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities measured bid i) Ny 0
at amortised cost: 2HEE
— Trade payables — B S EMNRE 87,568 45,760 45,760
— Financial liabilities included — st AR b BN FRIE
in other payables and et ERHH
accruals SREaR 12,462 12,462 12,492 12,492
100,030 100,030 58,252 58,252

* The available-for-sale financial assets are measured at cost less

impairment, and no fair value can be determine due to the range of

estimation is significant [note 17).

*

BN FHERMARDF

AL ESREERN AR REE AR
A BERK  HEEEER

FAE (MFE17) ©

ZE-REER
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. m\HIETWEMTIA

CATEGORY (continued) (&)

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments TREHFEBATERBREAFENE

carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy: MEpTEDH:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical FIER: CERERTMERBREESE
assets or liabilities; EEIE 2 WECREFE)

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that FER : UBIRBEUIINZEELE
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as BZzAERGABE  BER
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and EEE (BMER) kA (AR

EBREL) &

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on FIEH: EBERERVIIFERATEE

observable market data (unobservable inputs). MEHBECEENBEH A

BEAABEREARE) -

2016
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1ER E2ER EI/R et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR¥®TR AR¥®TR

Available-for-sale financial AHEESHEE

assets
— Listed equity securities at — EmRAFES
quoted market & RE 144,006 144,006

Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEBZHN

through profit or loss LREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — LRI RE 2,379 2,379
146,385 146,385
2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FIBR F2EH FEIBR 4t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABEN
through profit or loss SREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — LT IS IR (E 986 — — 986
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND B.£cEABREERAFE

FAIR VALUE

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other

payables and balances with related companies.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these

risks and they are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of

the Company. Therefore, the risk on foreign currency risk is minimal.

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to currency risk is
limited to its bank balances denominated in US$ as majority of the
Group's transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s material monetary assets that

AEEBEZEsMEERAE WRE
kR2EEBEY B HLEMERFA
B REMBNRIE UREFERF
MBS -

ZK;‘EE’J%EEIE%FEE’JI%HEAF%
SNERR EFEERRBERBESRER -
E%ﬁaﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁaﬂ%lﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁ
i IS

S S L B

AEBNEBEE AERXZEEN
ARBFHE ARBABEARABNIES
%o EIL - SMNEE R AR o

NERBRESRIAEZ A FELRKR
EREBRIEEXRZEH MRS 2 AR -
AEFEAZ 2 G¥RBENIAZTFE
MERITHES DTHARAEENANBO R
5 BEREENBENARKE

RBMEHR AEBEGRAAREEIN

are denominated other than RMB at the end of reporting period are MEEEEEEZREENT :
as follows:
Assets
BE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREF T
HK$ BIT =
us$ ETT 12,210
12,210

HNBFHERMARDE —F-—RFFER
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE (continued)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group's
profit before income tax expense for the year in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates to which
the Group has significant exposure at the end of reporting period. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit or decrease in

B.LEBREERAFE

()

I & B )

BRE D
TRITRBEMREAEERFEKRE
BAENEXRFAGEHEANAREZESY
75 B AR T2 R P AS 15 5 S AT A A A9
BOFE - THNESRKRTREMN LK
BETR -

loss.
Effect on profit for the year
HERGMNZHE

2016 2015
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AR T T

HK$ to RMB BILAARKE
Appreciated by 3% B{E3% -
Depreciated by 3% B7{83% -

US$ to RMB ETLHAARE
Appreciated by 3% #E3% 1,863 366
Depreciated by 3% B2 {E3% (1,863) (366)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rate had occurred at the end of reporting
period and that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain
constant. The stated changes represent management’'s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the

period until the next annual reporting date.

China Binary Sale Technology Limited Annual Report 2016
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and bills
receivables, other receivables, amounts due from related companies
and cash and cash equivalents. There was no history of default for
amounts due from related companies and other receivables, and the
bank deposits are placed in the banks with high credit-ratings.

In respect to trade and bills receivables, the Group trades only with
recognised and creditworthy customers and the receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis.
However, the Group had a certain degree of concentration of credit
risk on trade and bills receivables. The trade and bills receivables
from the five largest debtors as at 31 December 2016 represented
99% (2015: 88%) of total receivables, respectively, while the largest
debtor represented 59% (2015: 33%). Given the credit worthiness and
reputation of the major debtors, the directors believe the risk arising
from concentration is manageable and not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of cash flows from operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that
it has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial
obligations. The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as
at the end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, was less than one year.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to the relative short term maturity
of these financial instruments.

B.LEABEERAFE

(#)

EERR

AEENEERRIEREEEFEK
RBENRERRE - EEKFKE - B
MERARBARBRERREEEY - E
Y 858 A B GRIE e b B IR IR X S 4
Ri# BRTERFRESEEFR
EERT

NEFRBUFEREBREEME A%
EEFHEMEBEEERINEFRXS A
EWER D IRFERERNBE R ETE
RoRXM AEBE—TREELGEE
FRERFERERZEEFERREFR S
Moo N20165E12A318 - KRBEAKE®
AR E 5 M UGRIE 5 Bl h FE WG TE 42 58
#999% (20154F : 88%) : T & A& 75 A Al
159% (20154 : 33%) - ER X ZFEH A
WEERBEE EFHEETFEENA
SRR R REK -

REBETERE

AREENEEREBIRAEEXRKRS
MEBERBEENEAcEEEZLZHAR
Frg -AEEETHRIEETEESMN
W HERA R BT B R IR AT H A
E-RBEATHNRBRAT AEER
EHREMRNERABIHB LR —
& o

ATE

TREERERABNREERESH
BRMEANRBEHEKATER BBRZE
ERMTAMIBARE  HHEKEESR
HRAFERSE-

HNBFHERMARDR —F-—AFFR
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 December 2016, the Group acquired further 80% equity
interests in Aigigi Information, which was accounted for as available-
for-sale financial asset before acquisition, through Beijing TJYL. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group recognised a deemed gain
on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets of RMB93,000 in the
profit or loss, and the Group held 100% equity interests in Aiqiqi
Information. Aigigi Information is principally engaged in provision of
information technology consultancy services, application and
development services. The acquisition was made with the aim to

expand the Group’s existing scale of operation.

The fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities of Aiqiqi
Information as at the date of acquisition were:

34.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z=2016F12A318ILFE

EBaot

B2016F12831H AEE BB R
AEBHE -SSP REEDLTEB80%H
i HRWEATET L ESmE
E-RRXHTEKE  AEBNIBE AR
REREHETHRIESREEN K=
BAR®SB00L RALEEFEE D
T EENEBEZ -BELHFEEXER
FRECERMHARE EAKRAER
RIEER WEETEARNEERFE
B o

ErTEERKEANERNEERE
Bz FERAT:

RMB'000
ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment M- BB &#&E 35
Intangible assets B EE 2,074
Prepayments, deposits, and other receivables TER R~ e R E b fE UK IA 560
Cash and bank balances Re RIRITE R 530
Accruals and other payables FE 5T B R R H th & 11 5K IE (1,215)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised upon fair EHATFEAENERZ
value adjustments RERIEE & (519)
Net assets attributed to the Group acquired BAZASBELEEFE 1,465
Consideration transferred: EEAE
— 20% equity interest acquired in previous year ——_F — & & UK 20% 2 # 55 200
— Deemed gain on disposal of —RIEHETHEESREENKE
available-for-sale financial assets (note 7) (Mt sE7) 93
— Consideration net off with other receivables — —# 1k — 1 & 75 H fh fE 5k 1H 2 (K (B
due from a vendor 510
— Cash consideration payable —EAE 2R E (B 5EEE M ERFKIE)
(included in other payables) 290
Total consideration BB 1,093
Less: Net assets acquired B BEAZEEFR (1,465)
Gain from a bargain purchase (B W (372)
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition: EWEELE 2RSSR AFRE :
Cash and bank balances acquired BAZR® RRITER 530
Net cash inflow ReERAFH 530
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair value of trade receivables, deposits, and other receivables
amounted to RMB560,000. The gross amount of these receivables is
RMB560,000. None of these receivables have been impaired and it is

expected that the full contractual amounts can be collected.

Gain from a bargain purchase of RMB372,000 was recognised upon
completion of the acquisition of the Aigigi Information. The gain from
a bargain purchase on acquisition was mainly attributable to Aigiqi
Information’s years of losses due to the start up stage of business

and the valuation of intangible assets.

Since the acquisition date, Aigigi Information has not contributed any
revenue and profit to the Group. If the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2016, the Group’'s revenue and profit would have been
approximately RMB31,470,000 and RMB154,211,000 respectively. This
pro forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future performance.

The acquisition-related costs of RMB10,700 had been expensed and

were included in administrative expenses.

34.
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(K S H @

ZHEWHRE - ZeREMERZKEN
NFE B ANRES60,0007T © 3% % EWHK
TR A ARS60,0007T ° %5 E W
RIEMERE BBEHTKRBE2IEL
KIE o

REREBELHFELERE  FERER
= ARM372,000cE R - WBEE 2
ZERBUSTIZAREBRELEE
HEERFAABREINECTELEF
B EATE

BUWERAE ST EEHAALNE
Erdas s M ER BB - MREER
016F 1A 1B AL AEBERWE &G
52 B4 A AR 31,470,000 & AR
#5154,211,0007C » K5 E & BHE EF B
M@ WERMKBEEREDR2016F1A
THEAAEBER A ERMH KSR
EEBEMEZ DUERIERRKER
TER o

WHEEBEEXHEHZ2EBEANEAAARE
10,7007 YA B SR AITHEAS -

HNBFHERMARDR —F-—AFFR
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35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY . HEHME QT
On 30 September 2016, the Group disposed of its subsidiary, 20169 H30E  REBEEAWER
Shenzhoufu Network, which is engaged in the provision of internet AN AT A4 - & A B R R BB 4 BB
information service business in the PRC. The net assets of HEMRBES - HMNEFEBNEEH
Shenzhoufu Network at the date of disposal were as follows: HHEEFENT :
RMB'000
ARBFT
Property, plant and equipment M=% - BB &#&E 3
Inventories T7E 205
Intangible assets BICEE 1,139
Trade receivables Z ZEWRIE 139
Prepayments, deposits, and other receivables TER R~ e R E b FE UK IA 2,381
Cash and bank balances e RIBITE R 47
Accruals and other payables FE 5T R R H fth & 5 R IE (1,552)
Non-controlling interest FE15E AR (862)
1,500
Gain on disposal of subsidiary included in HEZERBRATAFEFARARIHN
profit for the year in the consolidated HEME D = W (M EE7)
statement of comprehensive income (note 7) 151
Total cash consideration BESKE 1,651
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEENRERAFE
Cash consideration received JEUR & KB 1,651
Cash and bank balances disposed of EHEZE & RRITER (47)
Net cash inflow REeRAFE 1,604
36. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  36. #it £ BT B 3R &
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by KO BMEN2017TFIA2UBE BEESS

the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017. HeofE Ko 3520 F1) 8% o
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